
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY April 30, 2024
Meeting Start Time:  9:30 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
9:15 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

9:30 a.m. PRESENTATION

Proclamation 24-57 - National Therapy Animal Day 
 

 

9:30 a.m. BID OPENING

Bid Opening for MetraPark 4-H Building HVAC
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS

 

1. FINANCE  

a. Resolution No. 24-77 of Intent to Dissolve RSID 713M Tanglewood Lake Estates 2nd Filing,
Setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday, June 11, 2024 at 9:30 am in Room 3108

 

b. Resolution No. 24-78 of Intent to Change Boundary RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates
Subdivision, Setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday, June 11, 2024 at 9:30 a.m. in Room
3108
 

 

2. PUBLIC WORKS  

a. Resolution 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of a Portion of
Rosebud Lane - Board of Viewers will be Commissioner John Ostlund, Clerk and Recorder
Jeff Martin, Lora Mattox Transportation Planner and Monica Plecker Public Works Deputy
Director

 

b. Resolution 24-80 to Set a Public Hearing on the Proposed Abandonment of a Portion of 56th
Street West in Sunny Cove Fruit Farms Subdivision - Setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday
May 14, 2024 at 9:30 am in Room 3108
 

 

CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Board Reappointment - Justin Downs to Broadview Fire District #3  
b. Board Openings - Updated List  
c. Support Letter - YVAS

 
 

2. COUNTY ATTORNEY  

MOU - RiverStone Health and YCAO for Additional Funds for CAC
 

 

3. ELECTIONS  

a. Election Judge Appointments for June, 2024  
b. Ballot Tabulation Policy  
c. Short Term Lease at Wells Fargo Building

 
 



           
4. FINANCE  

a. Sheriff's Office Detention Facility Request to Expend for Commercial Dryer Replacement  
b. Sheriff's Office Detention - Facilities Request to Expend Walk-In Cooler Floor Replacement  
c. MetraPark Recommendation of Award and Contract with Hardy Construction for West

Concessions Remodel
 

 

5. PUBLIC WORKS  

a. Contract Z and Z Seal Coating for Public Works Crack Fill Project I 2023-2024  
Big Sky Games 2024 Facility Use Agreement
 

 

6. HUMAN RESOURCES  

a. Transcarent Subscription Agreement  
b. PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 2 Appointments; District Court - 1

Termination; MetraPark - 1 Appointment, 1 Termination
 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. AUDITOR  

Payroll Audit April 1 to April 15, 2024
 

 

2. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Board Minutes - MetraPark Advisory Board Minutes, County Water and Sewer District
Board Minutes
 

 

3. FINANCE  

ARPA SLFRF Compliance Report for the Period of Jan-Mar 2024
 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES  

April 1 - April 15 Payroll Audit  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Proclamation - National Therapy Animal Day 
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Proclamation 24-57 - National Therapy Animal Day 
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Read & Sign

Attachments
National Therapy Animal Day 



PROCLAMATION 

Resolution 24-57 

WHEREAS, There are thousands of Pet Partners therapy animal teams serving in 

communities across the United States; and 

WHEREAS, Pet Partners has designated April 30th as National Therapy Animal Day; 

and 

WHEREAS, scientific research shows that interacting with therapy animals can reduce 

stress, relieve depression, slow heart rate, lower blood pressure and strengthen the immune 

system; an 

WHEREAS, therapy animal teams in Yellowstone County play an essential role in 

improving human health and well-being through the human-animal bond; and 

WHEREAS, therapy animal teams interact with a variety of people in our community 

including veterans, seniors, patients, students, and those approaching end of life; and 

WHEREAS, these exceptional therapy animals who partner with their human 

companions bring comfort and healing to those in need; and  

WHEREAS, we encourage more pet owners to consider becoming Pet Partners 

volunteers to help our community by creating greater access to meaningful therapy animal visits. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Board of County Commissioners, do hereby proclaim 

April 30, 2024, as National Therapy Animal Day in Yellowstone County, and encourage our 

citizens to celebrate our therapy animals and their human handlers. Further, we publicly salute 

the service of therapy animal teams in our community and in communities across the nation. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners, Yellowstone 

County, Montana this 30th day of April, 2024. 

Sincerely, 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

       

__________________________________ 

John Ostlund, Chair 

     

      ___________________________________ 

      Mark Morse, Member 

ATTEST: 

      ___________________________________ 

      Donald W. Jones, Member 

________________________________ 

Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Bid Opening for MetraPark 4-H Building HVAC
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Bid Opening for MetraPark 4-H Building HVAC
 

BACKGROUND:
N//A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Refer the bids to staff. 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Resolution of Intent to Dissolve RSID 713M Tanglewood Lake Estates 2nd Filing
Submitted For: Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Lisa Sticka, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Resolution No. 24-77 of Intent to Dissolve RSID 713M Tanglewood Lake Estates 2nd Filing, Setting the
Public Hearing for Tuesday, June 11, 2024 at 9:30 am in Room 3108

BACKGROUND:
See attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny

Attachments
RSID 713M Resolution of Intent to Dissolve 



Resolution No. 24 – 77 
Resolution of Intent to Dissolve Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 713M 

1 of 1 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 24-77 
 

Resolution of Intent to Dissolve Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 713M 
(Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision 2nd Filing) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-12-2124 of the Montana Code Annotated, a board of county commissioners has 
the authority to dissolve a rural special improvement district.  To dissolve a district a board of county commissioners 
passes a resolution of intent to dissolve the district, sets a public hearing on the dissolution, mails notice of the 
public hearing to the landowners in the district, publishes notice of the public hearing, receives protests on the 
dissolution, receives comments on the dissolution, holds a public hearing, considers the protests and comments and 
passes a resolution to dissolve the district.  A board of county commissioners can only dissolve a district if it would 
be in the best interest of the public, the district can pay its debts and enough landowners have not protested the 
dissolution.  
 
WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners created Yellowstone County Rural Special 
Improvement District No. 713M to maintain roads within the District.  Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the 
resolution that created the District, Exhibit B a map of the District, and Exhibit C a property listing for the District.  
Since the parcels in RSID 713M will be added to RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision, the funds in 
RSID 713M will be moved to RSID 715M for ongoing road maintenance. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners intends to dissolve Yellowstone County Rural Special 
Improvement District No. 713M.  The Board intends to dissolve the District because the properties in RSID 713M 
are encompassed within RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision. 
 
On June 11, 2024, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the dissolution of the District.  At the hearing, the Board 
will receive comments on the dissolution of the District and consider protests and comments on the dissolution of 
the District.  The Board orders the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder to publish notice of the public hearing, 
mail notice of the public hearing to all property owners within the District, receive written comments and protests on 
the dissolution of the District and provide the comments and protests to the Board before the hearing. 
 
After the hearing, if enough property owners have not protested the dissolution of the District and the Board believes 
that it is in the best interest of the public to dissolve the District, it will pass a resolution to dissolve the district.  
Conversely, if enough property owners have protested the dissolution of the District or the Board believes that it is 
not in the best interest of the public to dissolve the District, it will pass a resolution not to dissolve the District. 
 
Passed and Adopted on the 30th day of April 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 
 
      
John Ostlund, Chair 
 
      
Mark Morse, Member    ATTEST: 
 
            
Donald W. Jones, Member    Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 



RESOLUTION NO 03-·l':/1 

RESOLUTION CREATING 
RURAL SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT# 713M 

TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION 2
ND FILING 

FOR STREET MAINTENANCE 

WHEREAS, a Petition signed by more that Sixty Percent (60%) of the Freeholders of the 
proposed district has been submitted to the Board of County Commissioners for creation of a rural 
improvement district for road maintenance within Yellowstone County, Montana; 

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the proposed district are the exterior boundaries of the following 
described real property: (See Schedule A); and, 

WHEREAS, the anticipated cost for the maintenance, and the breakdown of those costs for 
benefited properties is attached hereto, marked Schedule "C" and by this reference made a part hereof; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the district shall be considered a district to exist perpetually unless included within 
another district providing the same services or assumed by a municipality; and, 

WHEREAS, now is the date and time duly notices and published as required by law for the 
Board of County, Commissioners of Yellowstone County to hear and pass all protests that may be made 
against the making of said maintenance district; and, 

WHEREAS, _O_ protests have been delivered to the County Clerk since the duly published 
first notice of the passing of the Resolution of Intention; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has acquired the jurisdiction to order the 
improvements pursuant to Section 7-12-2113, M.C.A. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, thatthe Board of County Commissioners of 
Yellowstone County, Montana, deeming the public interest or convenience require, and having acquired 
jurisdiction, hereby creates the following Rural Special Improvement District; 

1. NUMBER OF DISTRICT
Said Rural Special Improvement District shall be designated as District No #713M .

2. DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT
The district is described by the exterior boundaries of the following described property (See
Schedule A.)

3. DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS, DESCRIPTION OF MAINTENANCE, METHOD
OF ASSESSMENT, AND ESTIMATED COSTS. (See Schedule D)

4. DURATION
The district shall be deemed to be perpetuated in nature unless absorbed and replaced by

: another district or municipality.

EXHIBIT A



Resolution Creating Rural Special Improvement District 
Page 2 

DONE BY ORDER of the Board of County Commissioners, Yellowstone County, Montana 
this 10th day of November , 2003 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

Jo n Ostlund, Member 

(SEAL} 
ATTEST: 

· · Ton�7���;;:-
., Yelfowstone · aunty, Montana



' j 

Lots 2 through 5 block 9 

Lots 8 through 17 block 9 

Lots 19 through 22 block 9 

Schedule A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO CREATE R.S.I.D. #713M 

(TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION-2No FILING) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 

Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision-Second Filing 



/ /
/ 

·r

ooo t..AKt £STAl£s. ht nuNG 
I 

-ei 

TANGL(W 1 1 1 O '='ii 

I c >< J !" I
El L O I 

'"' •• -g !

I ,.,. 
., .. , 

.J \. � NIii��-

\ o .. oo-..o·o· ...J. - - mirJ[ (EJST. r.o'l'l ... •&1>-•1· I , 
I R • IIM.91' - oJ1 � -, \ _,,,...•� -

\ \ _. - L .. 1JO-�- � lt°ocn•· " _,t.lo \ 

._ � lrir).t· c / _,.,,._ - 1 r · \ \ 

y--eo.41•1• _ _. -- \\ \I ".\ 
. -----

�� 
u_.._,._ 

-·

( 1 ' ... ~"-'=-'""" 

I �.!..,. -.;;;� . .
...-_;"".,;..- :.,--. - -c• 

-- --

ooclJ"ll"'""------

) 

TANGLEWOOD LAK 

OCll-4G A roRTION Of TRACT I 
ANO All tOCA1Co IM YULowslc 

l 
l 

I l 
; t 

Schedule B



) 
Schedule C 

PETITION TO ESTABLISH A RURAL SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (RSID) 

SECTION D 
METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 

CHOOSE A METHOD OF ASSESSMENT: 

[2J Equal Amount: 

D Front Footage: 

D Other (Describe): 

D Square Footage (Please list the square footage for each lot within the proposed district): 
Property Owner Lot & Block, Subdivision or C/S Total Square Footage 

e_,._,.,_ Cf?.C'i.\(.. /t:c.u..E.r,f!, f'M.\<-- B.._.,c.� '1' l..oT 

,, ,. • 2-

" • • '>:, 

� u I• 

� • " $; 

... ,, (. 

� -, 
� ., s 
.. 

,< lO 

- ., " ,1 

' " I "l.. 

•• '
IA 

13 

... • ... 

� • •• 

... • l, 

� � " l1 

... ., ., l S

•• 

.. \\ 
'Z-.:> 

"' -i.. 

' 'l.'2..-

P:\XXXX\PROCEDURIRSID 



Schedule D 

PETITION TO ESTABLISH A RURAL SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (RSID) 

SECTIONC 
ESTIMATED ANNUAL MAINTENANCE COST 

FALL MAINTENANCE: 

ACTNITY/IMPROVEMENT ESTIMATED COST 

$ 

$ 

WINTER MAINTENANCE: 

ACTNITY/IMPROVEMENT ESTIMATED COST 

so= 

SPRING MAINTENANCE: 

ACTIVITY/IMPROVEMENT ESTIMATED COST 

$ 

$ 

SUMMER MAINTENANCE: 

ACTNITY /IMPROVEMENT ESTIMATED COST 

$ 

$ 

TOT AL ESTIMATED ANNUAL MAINTENANCE COST: ::,OD 
--=�------

P:\XXXX\PROCEDUR\RSID 



• 

TONY NAVE 
Clerk & Recorder 

P.O. Box 35001 

Billings, Mr 59107-5001 

October 28, 2003 

Phom• (406) 256-2785 
Fax ( 406) 256-2736 
E meil See e@:; rto■s mt go 

To: 

From: 

Property Owner(
z. 

T mgl7ood Lake Estates, 2nd Filing

Tony Nave ( j/J#1/f � 
Yellowstone County clerk & Recorder 

Re: RSID Maintenance District Boundaries for: 
Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision, 2nd Filing 

In reviewing the proposed boundary of the maintenance district for streets in Tanglewood 
Lake Estates Subdivision 2nd Filing, it has been determined that the following lots do not 
front upon the streets to be improved and will not benefit from the proposed maintenance 
district: 

Lots I, 6, 7, and 18 in Block 9, Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision, 2nd Filing 

The boundaries of the proposed RSID district have been amended to delete these lots. 



D00203 

D00103 RSID 713M & 715M
D00203A 

D00211 

C07534 
"' "' 

"' N 

C N 

.., "' 

C07535 u 

C14141 
C15152 "' 

u 
C15140 

� C "' 0:, 

� � � "' "' "' "' 
C15139 ti u u u ;:; 

C15136 C1513S C15134 

C15137 

000221 

D00199 

W1 

D00200 

D00223 

L.-.....j..:....--1 � � 
ti ti 

D00205 

-

0 

� 

� 
13 

� 
u 

-

D00180 

D00197 

;: 

0 

13 

<.> 

D00177 

D00207 

D00184 

D00183 

D00182 

D00181 

D00185 D00186 

-

C'" Original RSID 715M 

- Proposed removal 1226 
- RSJD 713M to be absorded into 715M 

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT C
RSID 713M TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES 2ND - PROPERTY LISTING

FOR 2024 DISSOLUTION

Tax ID Owner_Name FullAddr MailAddr1 City ST Zip Legal Description
1 C14609 BLODGETT, DUSTIN & HANNAH 8410 BLUE MARLIN DR 8410 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4625 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 2
2 C14610 HOPKINS, CODY C & AUBREY L 8405 BLUE MARLIN DR 17 1/2 ALDERSON AVE BILLINGS MT 59101-6068 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 3
3 C14611 GORDER, CHRISTIAN A & KATHLEEN G 8400 BLACK MARLIN DR 8400 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 4
4 C14612 ANDERSON, RACHEL D 8401 BLACK MARLIN DR 8401 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 5
5 C14615 GRAY, GERALD 8415 BLACK MARLIN DR 8415 BLACK MARLIN BILLINGS MT 59101 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 8
6 C14616 BAKICH, RODDO S & SHELBY E 8410 BLACK MARLIN DR 8410 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 9
7 C14617 HOPKINS, CODY C & AUBREY L BLUE MARLIN DR 17 1/2 ALDERSON AVE BILLINGS MT 59101-6068 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 10
8 C14618 HEREIM, CHARLES E & JEANNE 1535 BLUE MARLIN CT 1535 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 11
9 C14619 ZUNDEL, RON D 1545 BLUE MARLIN CT 1545 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 12

10 C14620 ELK CREEK LLP BLUE MARLIN CT 1545 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 13
11 C14621 MCDONALD, TOM J & STEPHANIE L 1530 BLUE MARLIN CT 1530 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 14
12 C14622 YEAGER, DEREK 1520 BLUE MARLIN CT 1520 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 15
13 C14623 ROSE, DARYL L 8420 BLACK MARLIN DR 8420 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 16
14 C14624 PATTERSON, SHANNAN STUART & 8435 BLACK MARLIN DR 8435 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 17
15 C14626 SAMANO, GREGORY P & MARGARET M 8460 CUT THROAT DR 925 CHINABERRY CT NEW SMYRNA BEACH FL 32168-7941 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 19
16 C14627 WERBELOW, RICHARD & LINDA J 8455 BLACK MARLIN DR 8455 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 20

Private Park - not assessed:
C14684 LAKESIDE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION BLACK MARLIN DR 8535 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 23, AMD (15)



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Resolution of Intent to Change Boundary RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates

Subdivision
Submitted For: Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Lisa Sticka, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Resolution No. 24-78 of Intent to Change Boundary RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates
Subdivision, Setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday, June 11, 2024 at 9:30 a.m. in Room 3108
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny

Attachments
RSID 715M Resolution to Change Boundary 



Resolution No. 24 – 78 
Resolution of Intent to Change Boundary for Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 715M 

1 of 1 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Resolution No. 24-78 

Resolution of Intent to Change Boundary for Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 715M  
(Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 7-12-2161(4) of the Montana Code Annotated, a board of county commissioners can expand a rural 
special improvement district once a year.  The Montana Code Annotated does not specify the procedure a board should use to expand 
a district.  When a property owner has not requested inclusion in a district, to ensure the property owner has an opportunity to explain 
to the board why the property should not be included in the district, a board should provide the property owner with notice of the 
board’s intent to include the property in the district and an opportunity to explain to the board why the property should not be included 
in the district.  The board should pass a resolution of intent to expand the district, set a public hearing on the resolution, provide notice 
of the public hearing to all current property owners and all proposed property owners to be included in the district, hold a public 
hearing, receive comments on the inclusion of the property in the district and pass a resolution.    
 
WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners created Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement 
District 715M to maintain the roads in Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision.  Attached as Exhibit A is a map of the District with 
proposed changes and Exhibit B a property listing for the District. 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that properties located in RSID 713M Tanglewood Lake Estates 2nd are encompassed within Rural 
Special Improvement District 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision.  Therefore, these two Districts shall be combined.  In 
addition, there are properties within the current boundary of RSID 715M that are no longer a benefitted parcel due to alternate access 
via Wisner Ave. and should be removed from RSID 715M.   
 
WHEREAS, the boundary of the district will be changed to include tax codes as listed in Exhibit B. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners intends to change the boundary of Yellowstone County Rural Special 
Improvement District No. 715M to include parcels previously in RSID 713M and to exclude non-benefitted parcels with alternate 
access to maintain the roads within Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision. 
 
On June 11, 2024, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the boundary change of the District.  At the hearing, the Board will receive 
comments and consider protests on the boundary change of the District.  The Board orders the Yellowstone County Clerk and 
Recorder to publish notice of the public hearing, mail notice of the public hearing to all current property owners and all proposed 
property owners within the proposed boundary change of the District, receive written comments and protests on the boundary change 
of the District and provide the comments and protests to the Board before the hearing.  After the hearing, if enough property owners 
have not protested the boundary change of the District and the Board believes the boundary change is in the best interest of the public, 
it will pass a resolution to change the boundary of the District.  Conversely, if either enough property owners have protested the 
boundary change of the District or the Board believes the boundary change is not in the best interest of the public, it will pass a 
resolution not to change the boundary of the District. 
 
Passed and Adopted on the 30th day of April, 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 
 
 
      
John Ostlund, Chair 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
Mark Morse, Member  
 
      
            
Donald W. Jones, Member    Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 



D00203 

D00103 

RSID 715M 
D00203A 

D00211 

C07534 
"' "' 

"' N 

C N 

.., "' 

C07535 u 

C14141 
C15152 "' 

u 
C15140 

� C "' 0:, 

� � � "' "' "' "' 
C15139 ti u u u ;:; 

C15136 C1513S C15134 

C15137 

000221 

D00199 

W1 

D00200 

D00223 

L.-.....j..:....--1 � � 
ti ti 

D00205 

-

0 

� 

� 
13 

� 
u 

-

D00180 

D00197 

;: 

0 

13 

<.> 

D00177 

D00207 

D00184 

D00183 

D00182 

D00181 

D00185 D00186 

-

C'" Original RSID 715M 

- Proposed removal 1226 
- RSJD 713M to be absorded into 715M 

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B
RSID 715M TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION - PROPERTY LISTING

FOR 2024 BOUNDARY CHANGE

Tax ID Owner_Name FullAddr MailAddr1 MailAddr2 City ST Zip Legal Description
1 C07498 YERGER, KENDALL J 8410 SAIL FISH DR 8410 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4614 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 1
2 C07498A TUELL, JAMES E & LORI K 8435 SAIL FISH DR 8435 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4618 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, & TANGLEWOOD WEST 1ST FILING AMND BLK 1 LOT 2
3 C07498B WIDDICOMBE, BREANNE N & SHAWN R 8465 SAIL FISH DR 8465 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4618 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 3
4 C07499 MOORE, EDWIN R 8515 SAIL FISH DR 8515 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4615 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 4
5 C07499A CHARETTE, MELANIE 8535 SAIL FISH DR 8535 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4615 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 5
6 C07499B WALTER, LYNN M & KIM L 8545 SAIL FISH DR 8545 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4615 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 6
7 C07500 PHILIPPI, REBECCA L & CHAD D 8625 SAIL FISH DR 8625 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4601 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 9
8 C07500A SHEPP, PATRICK A & JESSICA L 8565 SAIL FISH DR 8565 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4615 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 7
9 C07500B LAMBERT, PAUL W III 8615 SAIL FISH DR 8615 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4053 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 8

10 C07501A BONNER, MATTHEW M & TIFFANY M 8705 SAIL FISH DR 8705 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 11A, AMD **NOW COMBO LTS 8A & 11A, BLK 1** (16)
11 C07501B DAVID G KEIN TRUST & 8635 SAIL FISH DR 8635 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4601 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 1, Lot 10A, AMD  1.307 AC   (07)
12 C07502 RUSSOM, TIMOTHY R & SHANNON L 1100 BACK BAY DR 1100 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4603 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 1
13 C07502A ROTTRUP, CADEN J & LAURA K 1110 BACK BAY DR 1110 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4603 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 2
14 C07502B COWEN, MITCHELL E & ALICIA 8770 SAIL FISH DR 8770 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 3
15 C07503 MORAST, JEREMY & HEATHER 8766 SAIL FISH DR 8766 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 4A, AMD   1.358 AC    (07)
16 C07503A BECKHAM, NANCY 8730 SAIL FISH DR 8730 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 5, 63361 SQUARE FEET
17 C07503B BUNCH, TYSON & 8720 SAIL FISH DR PO BOX 3494 BILLINGS MT 59103-3494 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 6A, AMD      1.239 AC   (07)
18 C07504 PENDERGRASS, DANIEL T & TANA 8725 SAIL FISH DR 8725 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 9A, AMD    2.033 AC    (07)
19 C07504B OTT, JUSTIN & JESSICA 8710 SAIL FISH DR 8710 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 7A, AMD     1.539 AC    (07)
20 C07505 BONINI ENTERPRISES LLC SAIL FISH DR 8470 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 11A
21 C07505A HARTMAN, EMANUEL IV & LORNA R 8731 SAIL FISH DR 8731 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 2, Lot 10A, AMD    1.623 AC  (07)
22 C07506 MAURER, DANIEL P & JOELLEN L 8775 SAIL FISH DR 8775 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 3, Lot 1
23 C07507 MILLER, JAMES ADAM & SAMANTHA 8765 SAIL FISH DR 2458 EASTRIDGE DR BILLINGS MT 59102-2895 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 3, Lot 2
24 C07508 HALE, MARK & MARGARET ANNE 8755 SAIL FISH DR 8755 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4626 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 3, Lot 3A
25 C07509 LANDON, CHAD & HEATHER A 8420 SAIL FISH DR 8420 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4614 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 1
26 C07510 MURPHY, JERE 8520 SAIL FISH DR 8520 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4615 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 4
27 C07510A POGHOSYAN, ASTGHIK 8540 SAIL FISH DR 810 BRUINS LN APT 8 BILLINGS MT 59106-8510 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 5
28 C07510B LONG, ROBERT R & SHERRY M 8550 SAIL FISH DR PO BOX 81214 BILLINGS MT 59108-1214 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 6
29 C07511 MYERS, WILLARD L & JULIE A 1085 BACK BAY DR 7137 KING AVE W BILLINGS MT 59106-2616 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 7
30 C07511A LACKMAN, LUKE & DANIELLE M 1105 BACK BAY DR 5548 CENTRAL AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-2324 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 9, AND AMD TANGLEWOOD WEST 1ST FIL
31 C07512 BEELER, SCOTT K 1115 BACK BAY DR 1115 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4603 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 10
32 C07513 McCOMISH DANIEL 1125 BAY BACK DR 1125 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4603 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 11
33 C07513A PAVIA, NICHOLAS M & JACQUELINE R 1135 BACK BAY DR 1135 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4603 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 12
34 C07515 FISCHER, CLAYTON A & 8410 LONGMEADOW DR 8410 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 1
35 C07515A BONINI ENTERPRISES LLC LONGMEADOW DR 8470 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 2
36 C07515B BONINI, JOE & SHAWNA 8470 LONGMEADOW DR 8470 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 3
37 C07516 ALBRECHT, NICHOLAS JAY & JEANETTE 8510 LONG MEADOW DR 8510 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 4
38 C07516A BLOCK, DANA & DANIA 8520 LONGMEADOW DR 8520 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 5
39 C07516B LEONIS, DOMINGO & 8530 LONGMEADOW DR 8530 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 6
40 C07517 HILLIS, DAVID G & AIMEE 8505 CUT THROAT DR 8505 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4613 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 7
41 C07517A SULLIVAN, BRADLEY JON & LORIE ANN 8445 CUT THROAT DR 8445 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 8
42 C07518 MCLEOD, JENNIFER 8405 CUT THROAT DR 8405 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 10
43 C07518A PEILA-FROHLICH, BARBARA C & 8425 CUT THROAT DR 8425 CUTTHROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 10, Lot 9
44 C07519 KANTA, JOE J TRUSTEE 8405 LONGMEADOW DR 8405 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 11, Lot 1
45 C07520 PERRIGO, COLE & BRITTNEY 8525 CUT THROAT DR 8525 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4613 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 1
46 C07521 MORGAN, TWILLA KAY 8575 CUT THROAT DR 8575 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4613 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 014, Lot 004, LT 4 BLK 14 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES SUBD 1ST FILING

47 C07521A DOYLE, JEFFREY L & KARA L 8605 CUT THROAT DR 8605 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 5
48 C07521B KAHN, CHRISTOPHER M & SUSAN M 8625 CUT THROAT DR 8625 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 6
49 C07522 RATH, NADINE 8645 CUT THROAT DR 8645 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 7
50 C07522A SNYDER, SHANN 8665 CUT THROAT DR 8665 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 8
51 C07522B SITTER, GAYLE & DIANE 8705 CUT THROAT DR 8705 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4621 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 9
52 C07524 PALMITER, SAMUEL R & SONYA L 8660 LONGMEADOW DR 8660 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1802 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 13
53 C07525 REIGER, LISA 8610 LONGMEADOW DR 8610 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1802 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 16
54 C07525A WILLIAMS, THOMAS T & DARLENE M 8590 LONGMEADOW DR 8590 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 17
55 C07525B SCHAAF, LESTER C & DONNA WILSON 8580 LONGMEADOW DR 8580 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 18
56 C07526 WALTON, AMY J & DONAVON 8570 LONGMEADOW DR 8570 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 19
57 C07526A SONGSTAD, JOHN & ALLYSON 8560 LONGMEADOW DR 8560 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1826 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 20
58 C07527 WEAVER, NATHAN D & REBECA 8577 LONGMEADOW DR 8577 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 1
59 C07528 BOUCHARD, RICK & MARTHA 8585 LONGMEADOW DR 8585 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 2
60 C07529 EIDE, JEREMY J & MARY F 8605 LONGMEADOW DR 8605 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1823 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 3
61 C07530 DANTIC, AARON & LINDSEY 8625 LONGMEADOW DR 2320 ZOO DR STE D BILLINGS MT 59101-6231 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 4
62 C07530A JAMISON, ZACHERY W & JULIE M 8635 LONGMEADOW DR 8635 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1823 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 5
63 C07530B LYLE, NICHOLAS & CHRISTINE 8655 LONGMEADOW DR 8655 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1823 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 6
64 C07531 MILL, KIMBERLY A 8705 LONGMEADOW DR 8705 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 7
65 C07531A NEW LIFE PROPERTIES LLC 8715 LONGMEADOW DR PO BOX 5711 CLOVIS NM 88102-5711 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 8

Page 1 of 3



EXHIBIT B
RSID 715M TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION - PROPERTY LISTING

FOR 2024 BOUNDARY CHANGE

66 C07532 MAPSTON, KELLY J & TWILA J 8735 LONGMEADOW DR 8735 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 10
67 C07532A MAPSTON, KELLY J & TWILA LONGMEADOW DR 8735 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 9
68 C07533 LINTON, MATTHEW & BETHANY 8745 LONGMEADOW DR 8745 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 11
69 C07534 BOWEN, RICHARD LEE 8755 LONGMEADOW DR 8755 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 12
70 C07535 STOVALL, JEFFREY 8765 LONGMEADOW DR 8765 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 15, Lot 13
71 C12893 HARPER, SHANNON D & JULIE K 8485 LONGMEADOW DR 8485 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 11, Lot 3
72 C13013 KRUG, DARCI 8455 LONGMEADOW DR 8455 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 11, Lot 2
73 C13014 WALTON, MELISSA C & WILLIAM A 8515 LONG MEADOW DR 8515 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 11, Lot 4
74 C13015 MOORMAN, MICHAEL W & DONNA M 8440 SAIL FISH DR 8440 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4614 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 2
75 C13016 OLSON, JUDITH ANN 8470 SAIL FISH DR 8470 SAIL FISH DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4614 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 3
76 C13017 WINK, KYLE & ABBEY 1095 BACK BAY DR 1095 BACK BAY DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4628 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 4, Lot 8
77 C13018 NASH, KARRI 8650 LONGMEADOW DR 8650 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1802 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 14
78 C13019 TOUNSLEY, CIPI L 8630 LONGMEADOW DR 8630 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1802 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 15
79 C13020 WYMAN, SEAN 8535 CUT THROAT DR 8535 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4613 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 2
80 C13021 ROCKWELL, KEVIN & CHRISTINA 8545 CUT THROAT DR 8545 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4613 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 3
81 C13022 SMITH, GARY P & 8725 CUT THROAT DR 8725 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4621 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 10
82 C13023 LEINTZ, JESSICA E & CHRISTOPHER A 8740 LONGMEADOW DR 8740 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 11
83 C13024 MILL, KIMBERLY A (1/2 INT) & LONGMEADOW DR 8705 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4606 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 1ST, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 14, Lot 12
84 C14141 PATTERSON, BARRY E & DEBBIE 8805 LONGMEADOW DR 8805 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4627 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 12
85 C14608 ZUMBRUN, ANGIE J 1580 S 84TH ST W 1580 S 84TH ST W BILLINGS MT 59106-1819 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 1
86 C14613 JAMES, KENNETH A & CONSUELA M 8400 CUT THROAT DR 8400 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 6
87 C14614 REIMERS, PHILLIP M & MARIA A 8420 CUT THROAT DR 8420 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 7
88 C14625 BROBERG, DANNY 8440 CUT THROAT DR 8440 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4611 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 18
89 C15130 LOVE, ROSS D 8955 LONGMEADOW DR PO BOX 892 MAYS LANDING NJ 08330-0892 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 1
90 C15131 FELLOWS, JAMES 8945 LONGMEADOW DR 8945 LONGMEADOW DRIVE BILLINGS MT 59106 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 2
91 C15132 LOPEMAN, ANDREW D 8935 LONGMEADOW DR 8935 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 3
92 C15133 MURRAY, DEAN MICHAEL & CINDY L 8925 LONGMEADOW DR 8925 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 4
93 C15134 FINK, DOUGLAS E & MICHELE R 8915 LONGMEADOW DR 8915 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 5
94 C15135 ADAMS, WANDA K ETAL 8905 LONGMEADOW DR 8905 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 6
95 C15136 BELL, ALISSA & 8855 LONGMEADOW DR 8855 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4627 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 7
96 C15137 NYMEYER, KEVIN W & SHELLEY D 8845 LONGMEADOW DR 8845 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4627 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 8
97 C15138 CARDER, DEVIN 8835 LONGMEADOW DR 8835 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4627 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 9
98 C15139 CARDER, DEVIN 8825 LONGMEADOW DR 8835 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4627 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 10
99 C15140 ALBRECHT, JEANETTE 8815 LONGMEADOW DR 812 CENTRAL AVE BILLINGS MT 59102-5818 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 12, Lot 11

100 C15142 PEPOS, ZANE C & JESSICA L 8980 LONGMEADOW DR 8980 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 1
101 C15143 NUERNBERGER, COLLEEN M & HOWARD P 8970 LONGMEADOW DR 8970 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 2
102 C15144 PARRENT, ALLEN 8960 LONGMEADOW DR 8960 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 3
103 C15145 CHASE, MONICA 8950 LONGMEADOW DR 8950 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 4
104 C15146 WETZLER, LANCE W & LISA M 8940 LONGMEADOW DR 8940 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 5
105 C15147 ENTREKIN, JOSH & 8930 LONGMEADOW DR 8930 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 6
106 C15148 SCHREINER, ALAN D & TAMMY S 8920 LONGMEADOW DR 8920 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 7
107 C15149 JOHNSON, LORI & 8910 LONGMEADOW DR 8910 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 8
108 C15150 SPENCER, AVERY & AMANDA 8900 LONGMEADOW DR 8900 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1820 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 9
109 C15151 BONINI ENTERPRISES LLC 8830 LONGMEADOW DR 8470 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1813 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 10
110 C15152 BOWMAN, MASON R & KIMBERLY L 8710 CUT THROAT DR 8710 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4621 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 11 - 12, **FOREVER MERGED** (16)
111 C15154 RIWAI-COUCH, JOSHUA & CARA 8660 CUT THROAT DR 8660 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 13
112 C15155 GOATES, SEAN 8630 CUT THROAT DR 8630 CUT THROAT DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4617 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 14, .
113 C15156 BROWN, MARVIN J 8610 CUT THROAT DR PO BOX 80661 BILLINGS MT 59108-0661 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 15
114 C17994 TRIMBLE, STEVEN L & BLINDA A 945 S 84TH ST W 1128 DAYTON CIR BILLINGS MT 59105-4105 SHOP WORLD 1 SUB (20), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 187
115 C17995 WATSON, RICHARD A & KRISTAL J 941 S 84TH ST W 941 S 84TH ST W BILLINGS MT 59106-1843 SHOP WORLD 1 SUB (20), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 188
116 C18042 ELSER FAMILY TRUST 977 S 84TH ST W 977 S 84TH ST W BILLINGS MT 59106-1843 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 8
117 C18043 ROGERS, SANDY F 1103 S 84TH ST W 1103 S 84TH ST W BILLINGS MT 59106-1856 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 9
118 D00200 PALIN, WALTER D 948 S 84TH ST W 948 S 84TH ST W BILLINGS MT 59106-1851 S14, T01 S, R24 E, C.O.S. 1084, PARCEL 2B, AMEND TR 2
119 D00205 WOODS, JOHN JR (1/3 INT) 3521 TOMMY ARMOUR CIR BILLINGS MT 59106-1048 S14, T01 S, R24 E, SE4 (LESS N2SESE4 & TANGLEWOOD LAKE EST 1ST-3RD) 133.000        (06)

To be removed:
1 C18035 NAZARIAN, JOHN JAMES & 8039 WISNER AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-4648 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 1
2 C18036 NAZARIAN, JOHN JAMES 8039 WISNER AVE 8039 WISNER AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-4648 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 2
3 C18037 LAS PALMAS LLC 8111 WISNER AVE 49660 HAMMER DAM RD RONAN MT 59864-9448 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 3
4 C18038 DELAWARE, JUSTIN & MONICA 8129 WISNER AVE PO BOX 81368 BILLINGS MT 59108-1368 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 4
5 C18039 LAS PALMAS LLC 5501 CANVASBACK DR BILLINGS MT 59106-3748 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 5
6 C18040 LAS PALMAS LLC 610 S 44TH ST W APT 2304 BILLINGS MT 59106-3951 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 6
7 C18041 STANLEY, DENISE 8243 WISNER AVE 49 ORCHARD LN BILLINGS MT 59101-4910 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 7
8 C18044 LAS PALMAS, LLC 8242 WISNER AVE C/O ROBERT H & KATIE V BOYCE 1131 COOK AVE APT 1 BILLINGS MT 59102-5564 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 10
9 C18045 CLARK, SCOTT O & MARY L 8220 WISNER AVE 8220 WISNER AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-4646 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 11

10 C18046 LAS PALMAS LLC 3 HELTERLINE RD PLAINS MT 59859-9380 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 12

Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT B
RSID 715M TANGLEWOOD LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION - PROPERTY LISTING

FOR 2024 BOUNDARY CHANGE

11 C18047 DAIGNEAU II, ALLAN & 610 S 44TH ST W APT 4201 BILLINGS MT 59106-3942 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 13
12 C18048 ZIMMERMAN, SHAWN & 8112 WISNER AVE 8112 WISNER AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-4647 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 14
13 C18049 MCKAMEY, BRANDON & KRISTAL 8042 WISNER AVE 704 JOYCE ST BILLINGS MT 59105-3332 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 15
14 C18050 STANEK, JON E & REBEKAH A 8018 WISNER AVE 8018 WISNER AVE BILLINGS MT 59106-4648 HOMESTEAD ACRES SUB (21), S14, T01 S, R24 E, Lot 16

To be added (from RSID 713M):
1 C14609 BLODGETT, DUSTIN & HANNAH 8410 BLUE MARLIN DR 8410 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4625 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 2
2 C14610 HOPKINS, CODY C & AUBREY L 8405 BLUE MARLIN DR 17 1/2 ALDERSON AVE BILLINGS MT 59101-6068 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 3
3 C14611 GORDER, CHRISTIAN A & KATHLEEN G 8400 BLACK MARLIN DR 8400 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 4
4 C14612 ANDERSON, RACHEL D 8401 BLACK MARLIN DR 8401 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 5
5 C14615 GRAY, GERALD 8415 BLACK MARLIN DR 8415 BLACK MARLIN BILLINGS MT 59101 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 8
6 C14616 BAKICH, RODDO S & SHELBY E 8410 BLACK MARLIN DR 8410 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 9
7 C14617 HOPKINS, CODY C & AUBREY L BLUE MARLIN DR 17 1/2 ALDERSON AVE BILLINGS MT 59101-6068 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 10
8 C14618 HEREIM, CHARLES E & JEANNE 1535 BLUE MARLIN CT 1535 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 11
9 C14619 ZUNDEL, RON D 1545 BLUE MARLIN CT 1545 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 12

10 C14620 ELK CREEK LLP BLUE MARLIN CT 1545 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 13
11 C14621 MCDONALD, TOM J & STEPHANIE L 1530 BLUE MARLIN CT 1530 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 14
12 C14622 YEAGER, DEREK 1520 BLUE MARLIN CT 1520 BLUE MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4624 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 15
13 C14623 ROSE, DARYL L 8420 BLACK MARLIN DR 8420 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 16
14 C14624 PATTERSON, SHANNAN STUART & 8435 BLACK MARLIN DR 8435 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 17
15 C14626 SAMANO, GREGORY P & MARGARET M 8460 CUT THROAT DR 925 CHINABERRY CT NEW SMYRNA BEACHFL 32168-7941 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 19
16 C14627 WERBELOW, RICHARD & LINDA J 8455 BLACK MARLIN DR 8455 BLACK MARLIN DR BILLINGS MT 59106-4622 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 20

121 Total Parcels after boundary change June 2024

Private Parks - not assessed:
1 C14684 LAKESIDE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION BLACK MARLIN DR 8535 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 2ND, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 23, AMD (15)
2 C15157 LAKESIDE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 8535 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 13, Lot 16, .
3 C15158 LAKESIDE HOMEOWNERS ASSN 8535 LONGMEADOW DR BILLINGS MT 59106-1825 TANGLEWOOD LAKES ESTATES 3RD, S14, T01 S, R24 E, BLOCK 9, Lot 24

Page 3 of 3



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Res. 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of a Portion of

Rosebud Lane
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Resolution 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of a Portion of Rosebud Lane -
Board of Viewers will be Commissioner John Ostlund, Clerk and Recorder Jeff Martin, Lora Mattox
Transportation Planner and Monica Plecker Public Works Deputy Director

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Resolution 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers 





























   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Resolution 24-80 to Set a Public Hearing on the Proposed Abandonment of a Portion

of 56th Street
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Resolution 24-80 to Set a Public Hearing on the Proposed Abandonment of a Portion of 56th Street
West in Sunny Cove Fruit Farms Subdivision - Setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday May 14, 2024 at
9:30 am in Room 3108
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Resolution 24-80 































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Board Reappointment
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Reappointment - Justin Downs to Broadview Fire District #3

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and Mail 

Attachments
Justin Downs 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Board Openings
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Openings - Updated List

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Post 

Attachments
Board Openings 



 

April 30, 2024 

AREA II AGENCY ON AGING  1 year                   1 partial to 6/30/24 

 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #7  3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

WORDEN FIRE DISTRICT #4 3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #5 3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

LOCKWOOD URBAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 4 year             2 full to 5/2/28 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, May 30, 2024 

 

April 16, 2024 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 3 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 4 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live AND own property within 

the boundaries of the district. To find which planning district you live in, please contact the City/County 

Planning Division at 247-8676. 

 

LAUREL URBAN FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 
                     1 partial to 6/30/25 

                     1 full to 6/30/26 

BROADVIEW CEMETERY 3 year                      1 full to 6/30/26 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own property within the 

boundaries of the district. 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 2 year                    1 full to 12/31/25 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must have professional expertise in history, planning, 

archaeology, architecture, or historic preservation-related disciplines. 

 

LOCKWOOD TEDD ADVISORY BOARD 3 year                   1 partial to 3/31/26 

LOCKWOOD PEDESTRIAN SAFETY DISTRICT ADV. 3 year 
             2 full to 12/31/26 

                  1 partial to 12/31/24 
                  1 partial to 12/31/25 

PARK BOARD 3 year 
            1 full to 6/30/26 

                2 partial to 6/30/25 
                1 partial to 6/30/24 

YOUTH SERVICES CENTER 2 year               3 full to 12/31/25 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, May 16, 2024 

 

FUEGO FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 1 partial to 12/31/25 

BLUE CREEK FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 1 full to 5/8/27 

 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. c.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Support Letter - YVAS
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Support Letter - YVAS
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign

Attachments
Support Letter 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: MOU - RiverStone Health and YCAO for Additional Funds for CAC
Submitted For: Amy Tolzien  Submitted By: Amy Tolzien

TOPIC:
MOU - RiverStone Health and YCAO for Additional Funds for CAC
 

BACKGROUND:
Additional $15,000 to RiverstoneHealth - Yellowstone Valley Child Advocacy Center approved at
mid-year budget.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
MOU - RSH and YCAO 





-"7
/^" -^2^

c
Scott Twito

Yellowstone County Attorney

Date

<'^'^

Jopathm Potter ^ftA, FACHE
RwetStoae Hcgl^ President and CEO
/yeUowstone C&6aty Health Officer/YeUowstone (.toUaty

t/'^i/i/^
Date

MOU between the Yellowstone County Attorney's OfTlce and RiverStone Health
Page 2 of 2



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Election Judge Appointments
Submitted For: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator 
Submitted By: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator

TOPIC:
Election Judge Appointments for June, 2024

BACKGROUND:
Section 13-4-101, MCA, provides that the Board of County Commissioners is required to appoint
election judges at least 30 days before the primary election in even-numbered years. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt appointment of election judges.

Attachments
Resolution Appointing Election Judges 
Election Judge Attachement 1 



 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 24-82 

Resolution Appointing Election Judges 

1 of 1 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 24 - 82 

 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ELECTION JUDGES 

 
WHEREAS, 13-4-101, MCA, provides that the Board of County Commissioners is required to appoint election 

judges at least 30 days before the primary election in even-numbered years and each of Yellowstone County’s 59 

precincts requires at least three election judges; and  

 

WHEREAS, each election judge must be a qualified registered elector of the county and must attend a training class; 

 

WHEREAS, each of the electors designated for appointment has attended a training class conducted by the Election 

Administrator and has otherwise met the prerequisites for being appointed as an election judge in Yellowstone 

County; 

 

WHEREAS, Yellowstone County requires a sufficient number of election judges to serve in various capacities 

required by Title 13 of the Montana Code Annotated and as determined by the Election Administrator and also to 

form a reserve pool of election judges who are ready to serve if a vacancy occurs; 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners that the 

individuals provided for in Attachment 1 are hereby appointed as election judges for Yellowstone County and they 

shall further continue to serve as provided in 13-4-103, MCA; 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Yellowstone County Election Administrator is directed to organize the 

appointed election judges into election boards and positions required by Title 13 of the Montana Code Annotated 

necessary for the conduct of elections on or after June 1, 2024, and as further determined by the Election 

Administrator and into a reserve pool of election judges. The Election Administrator shall ensure, to the extent 

feasible, representation by individuals of at least two different party affiliations on any election board and shall take 

into account such other considerations as appropriate, such as experience, availability for upcoming elections, home 

precincts, familiarity with particular polling places, travel distance to designated polling places, and individual 

assignment preferences. The Election Administrator may augment the list of election judges with further 

appointments as provided in 13-4-102(4), MCA. 

 
Passed and Adopted on the 30th day of April, 2024. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

 

 

      

John Ostlund, Chair 

 

 

      

Mark Morse, Member     ATTEST: 

 

 

             

Donald W. Jones, Member     Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 

 

Attachment 

 Attachment 1 – List of Election Judge Appointees 



ATTACHMENT 1 

 

1 

 

 

Adamson, Rodney 

Allen, George 

Allen, Laurie 

Allison, Ellis 

Anderson, Cheri 

Anderson, Christine 

Anderson, LaVonne 

Andre, John 

Andre, Vicki 

Armstrong, Gary 

Armstrong, Rosemary 

Armstrong, Melvin 

Ascheman, Diane 

Atherton, Parris 

Awner, Adela 

Ayre, Bonnie 

Babovich, Laura 

Baeten, Rita 

Baeten, William 

Bankston, Terry 

Barndt, Angie 

Barnea, Lizbeth 

Barta, Sandra 

Baumann, Frederick (Bill) 

Baune, Corrine 

Beeter, Nancy 

Bensing, Beverly 

Benson, Rod 

Berens, Joseph 

Berens, Laura 

Berg, Lynda 

Bierschwale, David 

Bissell, Gary 

Blatz, Laura 

Blee, Juanita 

Bodden, Stephanie 

Bodden, Steven 

Bode, Heidi 

Bomgardner, Leah 

Bowling, Tammy 

Bradley, Colleen 

Bredehoft, William 

Brockie, Michael 

Brown, Amanda 

Brown, Bernadette 

Brown, Nancy 

Brown, Sheila 

Buckman, Lisa 

Burroughs, Karen 

Butler, William 

Caddell, Carlee 

Callen, Carol 

Campbell, Bonnie 

Carter, David 

Celix, Juanita 

Choriki, Danny 

Christensen, Tracy 

Clancy, Ann 

Clarin, Donald 

Clark, Claudia 

Clawson, Linda 

Cluff, Peggy 

Connaghan, Beth 

Countway, Thomas 

Cox, Gareld 

Cox, Phillip 

Crabtree, Jonathan 

Craig, Morgan 

Crouse, James 

Crowley, Rose 

Curtis, Dan 

Damm, Carol 

Daniel, Kendra 

Daubert, Bev 

Davis, Christopher 

Davis, Donna 

Deans, William 

Decker, Kristie 

Dedmore, Rosalie 

Demetriades, Larry 

Deschner, Jane 

Dibble, Edith 

Dibble, Gregory 

Donges, Kathy 

Doornek, Erica 

Downing, Michael 

Downing, Nancy 

Dunning, Sandra 

Dutcher, William 

Dwyer, Renee 

Egan, Carrie 

Egge, Shelly 

Eiker, Joseph 

Eiker, Susan 

Eldredge, Bonnie 

Elliott, Joyce 

Elrod, Larry 

Emett, Michael 

Engebretson, Bob 

Ereth, Kenneth 

Evans, Deanna 

Evans, Steven 

Everard, Carolyn 

Ewalt, Kent (Roland) 

Fannon, Robert 

Farrand, Grace 

Felten, John 

Fenner, Sherry 

Fitch, Cindie 

Fitzgerald, Catherine 

Flynn, Joan 

Forrette, Candace 

Frank, Douglas 

Franson, Linda 

Fraser, Scott 

Fulgham, Judy 

Fulgham, Scott 

Gallagher, Margaret 

Garrett, Bonnie Rae 

Gatzemeier, Gwen 

Geigle, Georgia 

Genger, Connie 

Gentrup, Elizabeth 

Gergen, Brent 

Goerig, George 

Gordon, Joann 

Granot Jr, Daniel, Lee 

Grav, Bethany 

Grav, Jamie 

Gray, Kathleen 

Gray, Steve 

Green, Karen 

Green, Rick 

Grinde, Wanda 

Grismer, Helen 

Gunn, Barbara 

Gutierrez, Lucais 

Hall, Ann 



ATTACHMENT 1 

 

2 

 

Halverson, Elizabeth 

Hannah, Karen 

Hansen, Jay 

Hanson, John "Jack" 

Harley, Dwight 

Harn, Patricia 

Harper, Simon 

Harrington, Lynn 

Harris, Mary Anne 

Hastings, Brenda 

Hawk, Janet 

Hayter, Charles 

Hayter, Debra 

Hedrick, Deborah 

Henderson, Forrest 

Hennen, Mary Beth 

Hernandez, Maria 

Herr, Kathleen 

Heupel, Myron 

Hines, Marian 

Holeman, Patricia 

Holland, Diana 

Honaker, Marcia 

Hopper, Karen 

Hostettler, James 

Hughes, Curtis 

Hughes, Margi 

Hurlburt, Marcia 

Huszti, Paul 

Hutchinson, Connie 

Ibarra, Jr. Blas 

Icenoggle, Luz 

Idstrom, Leslie 

Isern, Jennifer 

Ivie, Jeff 

Jacobsen, James 

Janecek, Claudia 

Johnson, Douglas 

Johnson, Eleanor 

Johnson, Kristie (Kristen) 

Johnson, Richard 

Jones, Linda 

Jorgenson, Sheila 

Judisch, Barbara 

Katolas, Grace 

Keeney, Sean 

Kegel, Clinton 

Keller, Marvin 

Kelly, Corrine 

Kelly, James 

Kessler, Gerald 

Kim, Justin 

Kimmerle, Lauri 

Klanke, Jim 

Klatt, David 

Krank, Mary 

Kreiman, Edward 

Kreiman, Sue 

Krum, Marlene 

Kudrna, Bev 

Kuhrbb, Kari 

Lambert, Janet 

Lance, Calvin 

Lannen, Terri 

LaPerle, Kim 

Latimore, Jerry 

Leach, Carmen 

Leon, Elias 

Leon, Monica 

Larson, Mellody 

Laughlin, Susan 

Left Hand, Leslie 

Lewis, Phillip 

Lien, Linda 

Linger, Scott 

Llewellyn, Elaine 

Loff, Linda 

Lohof, Arle 

Lohof, Armand 

Loken, Patricia 

Lombardy, Barbara 

Lowe, Russ 

Lowe, Shilloy 

Mackenzie-Sanders, Amy 

Mackey, Steve 

Macki, Michael 

Macki, Rosemary 

Maddock, Susan 

Mahon, Mike 

Maier, Dennis 

Maier, Susan 

Maine, Henry 

Malnaa, DeAnne 

Malnaa, Monte 

Marek, Mary 

Martinson, Patricia 

Marsh, Gary 

Marsh, Tami 

Martin, Cheryl 

Marullo, Joseph 

Mateel, Susan 

Maurer, Marlene 

McCave, Dennis 

McCracken, Joan 

McMullin, Robert 

McNally, Mary 

McNew, Tamara 

McRae, Murdo 

Mick, Carol 

Miller, Paula 

Miller, Sharon 

Miller, Vickie 

Modrow, Marie "Leslie" 

Moffet, Louis 

Moody, Logan 

Moots, Michael 

Montiero, Dom 

Moran, Jane 

Moran, Michael 

Morgenstern, Maryann 

Morrell, Dianne 

Munson, Deborah 

Murdock, Merita 

Murphy, Janet 

Murphy, Linda 

Murray, Mardelyn 

Muth, Mary Jane 

Neva, Erik 

Newell, Dean 

Newstrom, Darlene 

Nicholson, Vonda 

Nicholson, William 

Norwood, Ann 

O'Connor, William 

O'Donnell, Elaine 

Oblander, Joanna 

Oedekoven, Melinda 

Olson, Faith 

Olson, Harold 

Olson, Nikki 

Osik, Warren 



ATTACHMENT 1 

 

3 

 

Ottman, Sandy 

Ottolino, David 

Overturf, Terry 

Moore, Ruth 

Morse, Jeanne 

Mothershead, Kristine 

Painschab, Sheila 

Pals, David 

Pals, Karen 

Paulson, Steve 

Paxinos, Thomas 

Pence, Nancy 

Penrod, Wendy 

Peter, Jay 

Peterson, Linda 

Peterson, Norma 

Pickens, Francis 

Pickens, Linda 

Pierce, Herbert 

Pope, Sonya 

Popelka, Pam 

Prine, Mark 

Propp, Patty 

Pugh, Ingeborg 

Purinton, Pamela 

Pyburn, Dennis 

Pyburn, Evelyn 

Raines, Virginia 

Ramage, Kathy 

Ramirez, Lori 

Rankin, Sam 

Ray, Terence (Terry) 

Redman, Alan 

Redman, Dee Ann 

Reichert, Carrie 

Reynolds, Mary 

Richardson, Kristen 

"Kelli" 

Rickard, Colleen 

Roat, Brian 

Roberts, Cynthia 

Roberts, John 

Robison, Levi 

Rochon, Kerrie 

Rockhold, Tamara 

Rogers, Jessie 

Romine, Thomas 

Rose, Todd 

Roth, Rene 

Rowe, Martha 

Rowen, Teresa 

Rowen, Valerie 

Ruff, Della 

Ruff, Dennis 

Ryan, Lori 

Scally, Katherine 

Scheidler, Amanda 

Scheidler, Roger 

Scheie, Holly 

Schey, Joan 

Schroeder, Lourdes 

Scott, Boni 

Scott, Parker 

Scovell, Karon 

Sears, Allison 

Sears, Genelle 

Seibert, Herman 

Selby, Tami 

Shaffer, Laura 

Sheehy, Eileen 

Shelton, Pamela 

Siegel, Malinda 

Simon, Scott 

Sinclair, Dayle 

Sire, Don 

Sire, Richard 

Sivertson, Theresa 

Smillie, John 

Smith, Beth 

Smith, Scott 

Smith, T.J. 

Smith, William 

Sorenson, Vonda 

Spotted Elk, Lane 

Stabio, Becky 

Stanhope, Lizabeth 

Starkweather, Lorraine 

Steilen, Sherri 

Stene, Bill 

Stene, Samuel 

Steuber, John 

Stimpson, Karen 

Stocker, Maurinda 

Stockman, Nancy 

Stookey, Juliette 

Struckman, Daniel 

Struckman, Penny 

Sunderland, Paul 

Swanson, Jacquelynn 

Swords, Lloyd 

Templeman, Carol 

Theisen, Gary 

Thomas, Diana 

Thompson, Donald 

Tizono, Sherry 

Toavs, Jeffrey 

Tripp, John 

Tucker, Renee 

Turnquist, William 

Ullman, Elizabeth 

VanDyk, Jane 

Vender, Carl 

Vickery, Bonita 

Vogel, Denise 

Vogel, Michael 

Walker, Wanda 

Walton, Susan 

Waples, Ross 

Ward, Stephen 

Weinberg, Susan 

Welhaven, Diane 

Wenrich, Kelly 

Wessell, Anna 

West, Dana 

Whalen, Robert 

Wiley, Robert 

Wilnau, Christine 

Wood, Douglas 

Woodard, Steven 

Woodworth, Jayda 

Worn-Wilkerson, 

Friederike 

Wright, Melissa 

Wulfekuhle, Carol 

Zable, Lillie 

Zapata, Diego 

Zink, Ed 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Tabulation Policy
Submitted For: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator 
Submitted By: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator

TOPIC:
Ballot Tabulation Policy

BACKGROUND:
This policy reflects the county's choice to use machine tabulators and provides the requirements for
what occurs when a ballot cannot be read by machine tabulation or an elector otherwise requests hand
tabulation.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt

Attachments
Tabulation Policy 



YELLOWSTONE COUNTY ELECTION OFFICE 
 

TABULATION POLICY 
24-81 

 
Pursuant to § 13-15-206, MCA, a county must count its ballots in a uniform manner.  A county 
may choose to either conduct a manual hand count of its ballots in their entirety or use a machine 
tabulator to count the ballots in their entirety.  Once automated tabulation is chosen as the 
method of counting, then “if a vote is recognized and county by the system, it is a valid vote[,]” 
and “if a vote is not recognized and county by the system, it is not a valid vote.”  A ballot that is 
not able to be run through the tabulator must be transcribed to “…a new ballot that can be 
processed by the voting system.” 
 
Yellowstone County tabulates election ballots by machine.  Therefore, except as provided by 13-
15-209, MCA, Yellowstone County shall count all ballots using machine tabulation.  In accordance 
with § 13-15-206, MCA, Yellowstone County shall transcribe a ballot that is unable to be processed 
by the voting system to a new ballot that is able to be processed by the voting system. 
 
Passed and adopted this 30th day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 
       BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
       YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 
 
 
              
          John Ostlund, Chair 
 
              
          Mark Morse, Member 
    
              
            Donald W. Jones, Member 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. c.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Wells Fargo Short-term Lease
Submitted For: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator 
Submitted By: Katherine Aldrich, Election Administrator

TOPIC:
Short Term Lease at Wells Fargo Building
 

BACKGROUND:
Short term lease at Wells Fargo Building

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Wells Fargo Lease 























































































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Sheriffs Office - YCDF Facilities Request to Expend Commerical Dryer Replacement
Submitted For: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Sheriff's Office Detention Facility Request to Expend for Commercial Dryer Replacement

BACKGROUND:
Sheriff's Office Detention - Facilities is requesting approval to purchase a commercial dryer to replace
an aging dryer.  The purchase was anticipated and included in the Sheriff's Detention Facility
Miscellaneous Repairs/Equipment fund (4050.000.599.420110.940). The cost of a new Unimacs
Commercial tumbler dryer is $9,805.00

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
YCDF RTE Commercial Dryer 



Unimacs Commercial Dryer

$9,805.00

$9,805.00

Replacement of older dryer

4050.000.599.420110.940

$400,390.00

Yes - not specifically listed

04/19/2024

YCDF - Facilities



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Sheriff's Office Detention Facility Request to Expend Walk-In Cooler Floor Replacement
Submitted For: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Sheriff's Office Detention - Facilities Request to Expend Walk-In Cooler Floor Replacement

BACKGROUND:
Facilities Request to Expend is requesting Commissioner approval for replacing the aluminum diamond
plate floor on a kitchen cooler.  The diamond plate floor panels are bending and distorting due to the
weight of food carts on the single layer aluminum diamond plate.  The walk-in cooler walls and floor are
structurally integrated and require replacing one panel of the original floor, then overlaying a second
layer of diamond plate in a dissimilar direction to provide sufficient strength to withstand the load.  The
cost for the project is $9,418.00. The project was anticipated and included in the FY24 budget, but not
specifically listed in the Sheriff's Detention Facilities Miscellaneous Repair/Equipment fund
(4050.000.599.420110.940).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
YCDF-Facilities RTE Cooler Floor 



Detention Facility, Aluminum Diamond Plate Floor Replacement

$9,418.00

$9,418.00

Diamond plate floor in walk-in cooler is curling due to weight load of food carts

4050.000.599.420110.940

$400,390.00

Yes - not specifically listed

04/19/2024



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. c.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: MetraPark - Recommendation of Award & Contract - West Concessions Remodel - Hardy

Construction
Submitted For: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
MetraPark Recommendation of Award and Contract with Hardy Construction for West Concessions
Remodel
 

BACKGROUND:
An Invitation for Bids for MetraPark West Concessions was released on March 19th, 2024 with bids
due on April 15th, 2024.  Bids were opened and acknowledged during the BOCC April 16th regular
board meeting and were referred to a committee for recommendation.  Three (3) bids were submitted
with Hardy Construction submitting the lowest bid of $206,000.00 base bid, $8,225.00 for Alternative
#1 Solid Surface Countertops, & $17,650.00 for Alternative #2 Larger Exterior Countertops, for a total
bid including alternatives of $231,875.  It is the recommendation the project be awarded to Hardy
Construction.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Recommendation, sign the contract and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra Contract Hardy Const.NW Concessions 
Metra Recommendation of Award-West Concessions-Hardy Const 



   Document A105
®

 – 2017
Standard Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor

Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

AGREEMENT made as of the 24th day of April in the year 2024
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Yellowstone County Commissioners /MetraPark Advisory Board
Yellowstone County  
PO Box 35015
Billings, MT  59101

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Hardy Construction    
PO Box 1203  
Billings, MT 59103  

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

Yellowstone County MetraPark West Concessions
MetraPark
Billings, MT 

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

CTA Inc. dba Cushing Terrell    
13 North 23rd Street  
Billings, MT  59101  
Phone:  (406) 248-7455 

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

3 CONTRACT SUM

4 PAYMENTS

5 INSURANCE

6 GENERAL PROVISIONS

7 OWNER

8 CONTRACTOR

9 ARCHITECT

10 CHANGES IN THE WORK

11 TIME

12 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

13 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

14 CORRECTION OF WORK

15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16 TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

17 OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE 1   THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The Contractor shall complete the Work described in the Contract Documents for the Project. The Contract 
Documents consist of

.1 this Agreement signed by the Owner and Contractor;

.2 the drawings and specifications prepared by the Architect, dated February 26, 2024, and enumerated as 
follows:

Drawings:
Number Title Date
 G001 

A100
A101
A102
A103
A104
A105
A106

Cover

Architectural
Demo Plans
New Plans
Elevations
Sections
Wall Sections and Details
Add Alternate #2 -  Page 1
Add Alternate #2 – Page 2

02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

3

S001
S002
S101

P100
P200

E001
E200
E300
E400

Structural
Structural General Notes
Structural Schedules
Structural Plan and Details

Plumbing
Arena Level Plumbing Plans
Concourse Level Plumbing Plans

Electrical
Legends, Schedules and Panels
Lighting Plans
Power Plans
Special System Plans

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24

Specifications:
Section Title Pages
  

Division 00
000107
000115

Division 01
011000
012300
012500
012600
012900
013100
013200
013300
014000
014200
016000
017300
017700
017823
017839
017900

Division 02
024119

Division 04
042200

Division 05
055000

Division 06
064116

Legal and Procedural Requirements
Substitution Request Form
MT Prevailing Wage Rates – 2023

Procurement and Contracting Requirements
Seals Page
List of Drawing Sheets

General Requirements
Summary
Alternates
Substitution Procedures
Contract Modification Procedures
Payment Procedures
Project Management and Coordination
Construction Progress Documentation
Submittal Procedures
Quality Requirements
References
Product Requirements
Execution
Closeout Procedures
Operation and Maintenance Data
Project Record Documents
Demonstration and Training

Selective Demolition

Concrete Unit Masonry

Metal Fabrications

Plastic-Laminate-Clad Architectural Cabinets

1
21

1
1

4
2
3
3
5
9
4
8
9
8
5
9
6
7
4
5

7

12

6

7



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

4

Division 07
079200
Division 08
081113
083313
083613

Division 09
092216
092900
093013
096513
099123

Division 10
102600

Division 12
123616

Division 22
On Drawings

Division 26

Joint Sealants

Hollow Metal Doors & Frames
Coiling Counter Doors
Sectional Doors

Non-Structural Metal Framing
Gypsum Board
Ceramic Tiling
Resilient Base and Accessories
Interior Painting

Wall and Door Protection

Metal Countertops

Specs on Drawings

Electrical

6

8
5
7

9
9
8
4
5

3

3

On Drawings

13

.3 addenda prepared by the Architect as follows:
Number Date Pages
One Feb. 02, 2024 Four (4)

.4 written orders for changes in the Work, pursuant to Article 10, issued after execution of this 
Agreement; and

.5 other documents, if any, identified as follows:

NONE

ARTICLE 2   DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 2.1 The Contract Time is the number of calendar days available to the Contractor to substantially complete the 
Work.

§ 2.2 Date of Commencement:
Unless otherwise set forth below, the date of commencement shall be the date of this Agreement.
(Insert the date of commencement if other than the date of this Agreement.)

Date of this Agreement  

§ 2.3 Substantial Completion:
Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall achieve 
Substantial Completion, as defined in Section 12.5, of the entire Work:
(Check the appropriate box and complete the necessary information.)

[   ] Not later than  (  ) calendar days from the date of commencement.

[  X  ] By the following date: August 16, 2024  



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

5

ARTICLE 3   CONTRACT SUM
§ 3.1 The Contract Sum shall include all items and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the 
Work. Subject to additions and deductions in accordance with Article 10, the Contract Sum is:

Two hundred thirty one thousand eight hundred and seventy five  ($ 231,875.00 )

§ 3.2 For purposes of payment, the Contract Sum includes the following values related to portions of the Work:
(Itemize the Contract Sum among the major portions of the Work.)

Portion of the Work Value
  N/A

§ 3.3 The Contract Sum is based upon the following alternates, if any, which are described in the Contract Documents 
and hereby accepted by the Owner:
(Identify the accepted alternates. If the bidding or proposal documents permit the Owner to accept other alternates 
subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, attach a schedule of such other alternates showing the amount for each 
and the date when that amount expires.)

Alternate #1: Solid Surface Countertops
Alternate #2: Larger Exterior Concessions Countertop 

§ 3.4 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum are as follows:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item Price
    N/A

§ 3.5 Unit prices, if any, are as follows:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)

    N/A

ARTICLE 4   PAYMENTS
§ 4.1 Based on Contractor’s Applications for Payment certified by the Architect, the Owner shall pay the Contractor, 
in accordance with Article 12, as follows:
(Insert below timing for payments and provisions for withholding retainage, if any.)

 Payments will be made by the last day of the month for the previous month providing the Payment Application is 
received by the 1st day of the month. Five Percent (5%) Retainage and one Percent (1%) Gross Receipt’s Tax will be 
withheld from the monthly payments.

§ 4.2 Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the 
rate below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing at the place of the Project.
(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

0 % Zero

ARTICLE 5   INSURANCE
§ 5.1 The Contractor shall maintain the following types and limits of insurance until the expiration of the period for 
correction of Work as set forth in Section 14.2, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 5.1:

§ 5.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance for the Project, written on an occurrence form, with policy limits of not less 
than  one million dollars  ($  1,000,000  ) each occurrence,  two million dollars  ($  2,000,000  ) general aggregate, and  
two million dollars  ($  2,000,000  ) aggregate for products-completed operations hazard.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

6

§ 5.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Contractor, with policy 
limits of not less than One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) per accident, for bodily injury, death of any person, and 
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, and use of those motor vehicles along with any other 
statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ 5.1.3 The Contractor may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided that such 
primary and excess or umbrella insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as those required under 
Section 5.1.1 and 5.1.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower coverage 
than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require exhaustion of the underlying limits only through the actual 
payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 5.1.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.

§ 5.1.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than    ($    ) each accident, One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) 
each employee, and One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) policy limit.

§ 5.1.6 The Contractor shall provide builder’s risk insurance to cover the total value of the entire Project on a 
replacement cost basis.

§ 5.1.7 Other Insurance Provided by the Contractor
(List below any other insurance coverage to be provided by the Contractor and any applicable limits.)

Coverage Limits
  N/A

§ 5.2 The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability insurance and shall 
provide property insurance to cover the value of the Owner’s property. The Contractor is entitled to receive an increase 
in the Contract Sum equal to the insurance proceeds related to a loss for damage to the Work covered by the Owner’s 
property insurance.

§ 5.3 The Contractor shall obtain an endorsement to its Commercial General Liability insurance policy to provide 
coverage for the Contractor’s obligations under Section 8.12.

§ 5.4 Prior to commencement of the Work, each party shall provide certificates of insurance showing their respective 
coverages.

§ 5.5 Unless specifically precluded by the Owner’s property insurance policy, the Owner and Contractor waive all 
rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, suppliers, agents, and employees, each of the other; and 
(2) the Architect, Architect’s consultants, and any of their agents and employees, for damages caused by fire or other 
causes of loss to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance or other insurance applicable to the Project, 
except such rights as they have to the proceeds of such insurance.

ARTICLE 6   GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 6.1 The Contract
The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written 
modification in accordance with Article 10.

§ 6.2 The Work
The term "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, and includes all other 
labor, materials, equipment, and services provided, or to be provided, by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s 
obligations.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

7

§ 6.3 Intent
The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the 
Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as binding 
as if required by all.

§ 6.4 Ownership and Use of Architect’s Drawings, Specifications and Other Documents
Documents prepared by the Architect are instruments of the Architect’s service for use solely with respect to this 
Project. The Architect shall retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, including the copyright. The 
Contractor, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the instruments of 
service solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. The instruments of service may not be used for other Projects 
or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Architect.

§ 6.5 Electronic Notice
Written notice under this Agreement may be given by one party to the other by email as set forth below.
(Insert requirements for delivering written notice by email such as name, title, and email address of the recipient, and 
whether and how the system will be required to generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

 James Matteson, Yellowstone County - Purchasing: jmatteson@yellowstonecouontymt.gov; 
 Bob La Perle, Cushing Terrell - Project Manager: boblaperle@cushingterrell.com 406.896.6159 

ARTICLE 7   OWNER
§ 7.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner
§ 7.1.1 If requested by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish all necessary surveys and a legal description of the site.

§ 7.1.2 Except for permits and fees under Section 8.7.1 that are the responsibility of the Contractor, the Owner shall 
obtain and pay for other necessary approvals, easements, assessments, and charges.

§ 7.1.3 Prior to commencement of the Work, at the written request of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the 
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations 
under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such 
evidence.

§ 7.2 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work
If the Contractor fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may direct 
the Contractor in writing to stop the Work until the correction is made.

§ 7.3 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails 
within a seven day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such 
default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies, correct such 
deficiencies. In such case, the Architect may withhold or nullify a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the 
extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the cost of correction, provided the actions of the Owner and 
amounts charged to the Contractor were approved by the Architect.

§ 7.4 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts
§ 7.4.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own 
forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project.

§ 7.4.2 The Contractor shall coordinate and cooperate with the Owner’s own forces and separate contractors employed 
by the Owner.

ARTICLE 8   CONTRACTOR
§ 8.1 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor
§ 8.1.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become 
familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal observations with 
requirements of the Contract Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

8

§ 8.1.2 The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents with each other and with 
information furnished by the Owner. Before commencing activities, the Contractor shall (1) take field measurements 
and verify field conditions; (2) carefully compare this and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract 
Documents; and (3) promptly report errors, inconsistencies, or omissions discovered to the Architect.

§ 8.2 Contractor’s Construction Schedule
The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s 
information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work.

§ 8.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures
§ 8.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work.

§ 8.3.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner, 
through the Architect, the names of subcontractors or suppliers for each portion of the Work. The Contractor shall not 
contract with any subcontractor or supplier to whom the Owner or Architect have made a timely and reasonable 
objection.

§ 8.4 Labor and Materials
§ 8.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution 
and completion of the Work.

§ 8.4.2 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other 
persons carrying out the Contract Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not 
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 8.5 Warranty
The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that: (1) materials and equipment furnished under the Contract 
will be new and of good quality unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents; (2) the Work will 
be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted; and (3) the Work will conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. Any material or equipment warranties required by the Contract Documents 
shall be issued in the name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance 
with Section 12.5.

§ 8.6 Taxes
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use, and similar taxes that are legally required when the Contract is 
executed.

§ 8.7 Permits, Fees and Notices
§ 8.7.1 The Contractor shall obtain and pay for the building permit and other permits and governmental fees, licenses, 
and inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work.

§ 8.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. If 
the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such Work and 
shall bear the attributable costs. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Architect in writing of any known 
inconsistencies in the Contract Documents with such governmental laws, rules, and regulations.

§ 8.8 Submittals
The Contractor shall promptly review, approve in writing, and submit to the Architect shop drawings, product data, 
samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents. Shop drawings, product data, samples, and 
similar submittals are not Contract Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

9

§ 8.9 Use of Site
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits, the Contract 
Documents, and the Owner. The contractor will be required to coordinate and work around scheduled events in the 
arena.

§ 8.10 Cutting and Patching
The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make its parts 
fit together properly.

§ 8.11 Cleaning Up
The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of debris and trash related to the 
Work. At the completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove its tools, construction equipment, machinery, and 
surplus material; and shall properly dispose of waste materials.

§ 8.12 Indemnification
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, 
Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, 
provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to 
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent 
acts or omissions of the Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for 
whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a 
party indemnified hereunder.

ARTICLE 9   ARCHITECT
§ 9.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents. The Architect 
will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to become generally familiar 
with the progress and quality of the Work.

§ 9.3 The Architect will not have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for, construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, 
since these are solely the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure 
to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.4 Based on the Architect’s observations and evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the 
Architect will review and certify the amounts due the Contractor.

§ 9.5 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6 The Architect will promptly review and approve or take appropriate action upon Contractor’s submittals, but 
only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in 
the Contract Documents.

§ 9.7 On written request from either the Owner or Contractor, the Architect will promptly interpret and decide matters 
concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from 
the Contract Documents, and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and 
decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show 
partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 9.9 The Architect’s duties, responsibilities, and limits of authority as described in the Contract Documents shall not 
be changed without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

10

ARTICLE 10   CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 10.1 The Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the Work within the general scope of the 
Contract, consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, and the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be 
adjusted accordingly, in writing. If the Owner and Contractor cannot agree to a change in the Contract Sum, the Owner 
shall pay the Contractor its actual cost-plus reasonable overhead and profit.

§ 10.2 The Architect may authorize or order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the 
Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Such 
authorization or order shall be in writing and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor. The Contractor shall 
proceed with such minor changes promptly.

§ 10.3 If concealed or unknown physical conditions are encountered at the site that differ materially from those 
indicated in the Contract Documents or from those conditions ordinarily found to exist, the Contract Sum and Contract 
Time shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

ARTICLE 11   TIME
§ 11.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

§ 11.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in progress of the Work by changes ordered in the Work, or by labor 
disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control, the 
Contract Time shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

§ 11.3 Costs caused by delays or by improperly timed activities or defective construction shall be borne by the 
responsible party.

ARTICLE 12   PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
§ 12.1 Contract Sum
The Contract Sum stated in this Agreement, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by the 
Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2 Applications for Payment
§ 12.2.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment for Work completed in accordance with the values stated in this 
Agreement. The Application shall be supported by data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner 
or Architect may reasonably require, such as evidence of payments made to, and waivers of liens from, subcontractors and 
suppliers. Payments shall be made on account of materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for 
subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for 
materials and equipment stored, and protected from damage, off the site at a location agreed upon in writing.

§ 12.2.2 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner 
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment, 
all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, 
to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, 
or other encumbrances adverse to the Owner’s interests.

§ 12.3 Certificates for Payment
The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue to the 
Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor; (2) 
issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly due, and notify 
the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part; or (3) withhold 
certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reason for 
withholding certification in whole. If certification or notification is not made within such seven day period, the 
Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the Work until payment 
of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time and the Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted due to 
the delay.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

11

§ 12.4 Progress Payments
§ 12.4.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner 
provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 12.4.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each subcontractor and supplier, upon receipt of payment from the Owner, 
an amount determined in accordance with the terms of the applicable subcontracts and purchase orders.

§ 12.4.3 Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall have responsibility for payments to a subcontractor or supplier.

§ 12.4.4 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.5 Substantial Completion
§ 12.5.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof 
is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for 
its intended use.

§ 12.5.2 When the Contractor believes that the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, it will 
notify the Architect and the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work is substantially 
complete. When the Architect determines that the Work is substantially complete, the Architect shall prepare a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, establish the 
responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor, and fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the 
list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of 
Substantial Completion.

§ 12.6 Final Completion and Final Payment
§ 12.6.1 Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will inspect the Work. When the Architect 
finds the Work acceptable and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly issue a final Certificate for 
Payment.

§ 12.6.2 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor submits to the Architect releases and waivers of 
liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, claims, security interests, or 
encumbrances arising out of the Contract.

§ 12.6.3 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a subcontractor or supplier shall constitute a waiver of claims 
by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of final 
Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 13   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs, 
including all those required by law in connection with performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall take 
reasonable precautions to prevent damage, injury, or loss to employees on the Work and other persons who may be 
affected thereby, the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, and other property at the site or 
adjacent thereto. The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss to property caused in whole or in part by the 
Contractor, or by anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable.

ARTICLE 14   CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 14.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect as failing to conform to the requirements 
of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting such rejected Work, including the costs of 
uncovering, replacement, and additional testing.

§ 14.2 In addition to the Contractor’s other obligations including warranties under the Contract, the Contractor shall, 
for a period of one year after Substantial Completion, correct work not conforming to the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

12

§ 14.3 If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the Owner may correct it in 
accordance with Section 7.3.

ARTICLE 15   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 15.1 Assignment of Contract
Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other.

§ 15.2 Tests and Inspections
§ 15.2.1 At the appropriate times, the Contractor shall arrange and bear cost of tests, inspections, and approvals of 
portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or by laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 15.2.2 If the Architect requires additional testing, the Contractor shall perform those tests.

§ 15.2.3 The Owner shall bear cost of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after the 
Contract is executed. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or approvals where building 
codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.

§ 15.3 Governing Law
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice 
of law rules.

ARTICLE 16   TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 16.1 Termination by the Contractor
If the Work is stopped under Section 12.3 for a period of 14 days through no fault of the Contractor, the Contractor 
may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from 
the Owner payment for Work executed including reasonable overhead and profit, and costs incurred by reason of such 
termination.

§ 16.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 16.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor

.1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;

.2 fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 
agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors;

.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or

.4 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 16.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner, after consultation with the Architect, may without prejudice 
to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven 
days’ written notice, terminate employment of the Contractor and may

.1 take possession of the site and of all materials thereon owned by the Contractor, and

.2 finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient.

§ 16.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 16.2.1, the Contractor shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 16.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, such excess shall be paid to the 
Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. This 
obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Contract.

§ 16.3 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. The Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with 
reasonable overhead and profit on the Work not executed.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

13

ARTICLE 17   OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS
(Insert any other terms or conditions below.)

NONE

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.
(If required by law, insert cancellation period, disclosures or other warning statements above the signatures.)

N/A

    

OWNER (Signature) CONTRACTOR (Signature)
Yellowstone County       
(Printed name and title ) (Printed name and title )

LICENSE NO.:
JURISDICTION:

Jason
Typewritten Text
618

Jason
Typewritten Text
State of Montana



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA

®
 Document A105® – 2017

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has added 
to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from the original 
AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any part 
of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated simultaneously by 
AIA software at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

1

PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the 24th day of April in the year 2024

…

Yellowstone County Commissioners /MetraPark Advisory Board
Yellowstone County  
PO Box 35015
Billings, MT  59101

…

Hardy Construction    
PO Box 1203  
Billings, MT 59103  

…

Yellowstone County MetraPark West Concessions
MetraPark
Billings, MT 

…

CTA Inc. dba Cushing Terrell    
13 North 23rd Street  
Billings, MT  59101  
Phone:  (406) 248-7455 
PAGE 2

.2 the drawings and specifications prepared by the Architect, dated , February 26, 2024, and enumerated 
as follows:

…

 G001 

A100
A101
A102
A103
A104

Cover

Architectural
Demo Plans
New Plans
Elevations
Sections
Wall Sections and Details

02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

2

A105
A106

S001
S002
S101

P100
P200

E001
E200
E300
E400

Add Alternate #2 -  Page 1
Add Alternate #2 – Page 2

Structural
Structural General Notes
Structural Schedules
Structural Plan and Details

Plumbing
Arena Level Plumbing Plans
Concourse Level Plumbing Plans

Electrical
Legends, Schedules and Panels
Lighting Plans
Power Plans
Special System Plans

02-26-24
02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24

02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24
02-26-24

PAGE 3

  

Division 00
000107
000115

Division 01
011000
012300
012500
012600
012900
013100
013200
013300
014000
014200
016000
017300
017700
017823
017839
017900

Division 02
024119

Division 04
042200

Division 05
055000

Division 06

Legal and Procedural Requirements
Substitution Request Form
MT Prevailing Wage Rates – 2023

Procurement and Contracting Requirements
Seals Page
List of Drawing Sheets

General Requirements
Summary
Alternates
Substitution Procedures
Contract Modification Procedures
Payment Procedures
Project Management and Coordination
Construction Progress Documentation
Submittal Procedures
Quality Requirements
References
Product Requirements
Execution
Closeout Procedures
Operation and Maintenance Data
Project Record Documents
Demonstration and Training

Selective Demolition

Concrete Unit Masonry

Metal Fabrications

1
21

1
1

4
2
3
3
5
9
4
8
9
8
5
9
6
7
4
5

7

12

6



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

3

064116

Division 07
079200
Division 08
081113
083313
083613

Division 09
092216
092900
093013
096513
099123

Division 10
102600

Division 12
123616

Division 22
On Drawings

Division 26

Plastic-Laminate-Clad Architectural Cabinets

Joint Sealants

Hollow Metal Doors & Frames
Coiling Counter Doors
Sectional Doors

Non-Structural Metal Framing
Gypsum Board
Ceramic Tiling
Resilient Base and Accessories
Interior Painting

Wall and Door Protection

Metal Countertops

Specs on Drawings

Electrical

7

6

8
5
7

9
9
8
4
5

3

3

On Drawings

13

PAGE 4

One Feb. 02, 2024 Four (4)

…

NONE

…

Date of this Agreement  

…

[  X  ] By the following date: August 16, 2024  
PAGE 5

Two hundred thirty one thousand eight hundred and seventy five  ($ 231,875.00 )

…

  N/A

…

Alternate #1: Solid Surface Countertops
Alternate #2: Larger Exterior Concessions Countertop 

…



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

4

    N/A

…

    N/A

…

 Payments will be made by the last day of the month for the previous month providing the Payment Application is 
received by the 1st day of the month. Five Percent (5%) Retainage and one Percent (1%) Gross Receipt’s Tax will be 
withheld from the monthly payments.

…

0 % Zero

…

§ 5.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance for the Project, written on an occurrence form, with policy limits of not less 
than  one million dollars  ($  1,000,000  ) each occurrence,  two million dollars  ($  2,000,000  ) general aggregate, and  
two million dollars  ($  2,000,000  ) aggregate for products-completed operations hazard.

§ 5.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Contractor, with policy 
limits of not less than One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) per accident, for bodily injury, death of any person, and 
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, and use of those motor vehicles along with any other 
statutorily required automobile coverage.
PAGE 6

§ 5.1.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than    ($    ) each accident, One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) 
each employee, and One Million   ($ 1,000,000.00   ) policy limit.

…

  N/A
PAGE 7

 James Matteson, Yellowstone County - Purchasing: jmatteson@yellowstonecouontymt.gov; 
 Bob La Perle, Cushing Terrell - Project Manager: boblaperle@cushingterrell.com 406.896.6159 
PAGE 9

The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits, the Contract 
Documents, and the Owner. The contractor will be required to coordinate and work around scheduled events in the 
arena.
PAGE 10

§ 10.1 The Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the Work within the general scope of the 
Contract, consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, and the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be 
adjusted accordingly, in writing. If the Owner and Contractor cannot agree to a change in the Contract Sum, the Owner 
shall pay the Contractor its actual cost plus cost-plus reasonable overhead and profit.
PAGE 13

NONE

…



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

5

(If required by law, insert cancellation period, disclosures or other warning statements above the signatures.)

N/A

…

Yellowstone County       



AIA Document D401 – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 under 
Order No.3104239063 which expires on 08/14/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1497655383)

1

’Certification of Document s Authenticity
AIA® ™  – 2003 Document D401

I,   , hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document 
simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 09:37:48 ET on 04/24/2024 
under Order No. 3104239063 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final 
document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A105™ – 2017, Standard Short Form of 
Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, other than those additions and deletions shown in the associated 
Additions and Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)



April 25th, 2024 

 

 

Recommendation of Award 

MetraPark West Concessions to Hardy Construction 

 

 

An Invitation for Bid was released on March 19th,  2024 for MetraPark West Concessions Remodel.  Bids 

were due by 3:00 p.m. April 15th,  2024. Bids were opened on the April 16th, 2024  Board of County 

Commissioners regular board meeting.  Three (3) bids were received.  Bids were reviewed by committee 

and recommend award the project to the low bidder, Hardy Construction with a base bid of $206,000.00, 

Alternative #1 $8,225.00 for solid surface countertops, and Alternative #2 $17,650.00 for larger exterior 

countertops for a total of $231,875.00. 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 5. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Contract for Public Works Crack Fill Project I 2023-2024
Submitted For: Tim Miller, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Tim Miller, Public Works Director

TOPIC:
Contract Z and Z Seal Coating for Public Works Crack Fill Project I 2023-2024

BACKGROUND:
Contract with Z and Z Seal Coating Inc for crack filling on various county roads.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the contract

Attachments
Contracts 





























   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Big Sky Games 2024
Submitted By: Alexis Hellman

TOPIC:
Big Sky Games 2024 Facility Use Agreement
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss

Attachments
BigSkyGames24 















   
B.O.C.C. Regular 6. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Transcarent Subscription Agreement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Transcarent Subscription Agreement

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Transcarent Agreement 





























































   
B.O.C.C. Regular 6. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 2 Appointments; District Court - 1
Termination; MetraPark - 1 Appointment, 1 Termination

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 
PAR 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Payroll Audit
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Payroll Audit April 1 to April 15, 2024
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Payroll Audit 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - MetraPark Advisory Board Minutes, County Water and Sewer District Board Minutes
 

BACKGROUND:
MetraPark Avisory Board Minutes - 03-26-24
County Water and Sewer Board Minutes - 01/07/24, 02/21/24, 03/20/24, 03/26/24 Board of Directors
Special Meeting, 04/10/24 Special Board Meeting

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Metra Advisory Board Minutes 
County Water and Sewer Board Minutes 



Proposed Minutes MetraPark Advisory Board Meeting 
March 26, 2024 

 
 
ATTENDING BOARD MEMBERS: President Mike Mayott, Charlie Loveridge, Evan 
Decker, Steve Hurd, Dana Bishop, Woody Woods, Joy Culver, Lyle Hill, Kevan Bryan, 
John Ostlund, Mark Morse 
 
ABSENT:  Pam Ask, Don Jones, Dave Williams, Brian Brown 
 
 
OTHERS:  MetraPark Staff: Darcie Tempel, Cody Reitz, David Roth, Robert Romito, 
Mike Groscop, Lynn Miller, Kelly Campbell, Shannon Conklin (CMS), Deb Christensen 
(recording) 
 
 
OPENING REMARKS 
President Mike Mayott called the meeting to order and greeted everyone in attendance. 
 
MINUTES 
There was a motion made to dispense reading of the minutes by Steve Hurd and 
seconded by Charlie Loveridge. A motion was made by Steve Hurd to approve the 
minutes for February. It was seconded by Dana Bishop.  The motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
VSG Status- Kevan Bryan gave a report on the VSG contract and recent visits. He 
reported that they have been very instrumental in recent changes. They will be working 
on Skybox contracts and Food & Beverage contracts that expire in June.  He provided a 
handout titled VSG Project Update – March 22, 2024 
 
 
MANAGERS REPORTS 
Monthly reports are in the packets.   
 
Stoney – was out of the office for the week.  He is at Mid-West Fairs. 
 
Tim – was out of the office for the week.  He is at Mid-West Fairs 
 
Cody –reported on the progress of booking new shows for 2024. A probable sell out 

(full house) show in September that will be announced in April.  Possibly another big 

show a couple days before. Darcie provided updates on sponsorship efforts for 

MontanaFair 2024. They are up to $113,700 for sponsorships for the fair. They were 

commended for a great job. He was asked if OVG were bookings any of these shows.  

Cody reported no. We already have the bid packets for next years MHSA.   

Kelly – Report was in the packet. Kelly announced that Randy Pardis is retiring after 



being here for 47 years and 3 months.  He is the longest employee for the county.  If 
anybody wants to donate, they can bring a donation to accounting.  They are buying 
him a visa gift card. 
 
Mike G – Report in the packet.  
 
David – Passed around ticketing sales report to group.  
 
Jeff – Report in the packet. Jeff is on vacation. 
 
Shannon– Shannon reported that their number are up to 30 so everything is going well. 
.    
 
Events Committee – The committee was taxed with working on ideas for loading in 
crowds especially during inclement weather.  Check with other vendors to see how they 
handle ADA load in.  They were asked to find out about gun issues with off duty police.   
 
Finance Committee – Charlie forwarded the minutes from the March 20 meeting via 
text. 
 
Fair Committee -there was no meeting in March. 
 
Advisory Board Comments – Mike asked that a thank you card be sent to the MHSA 
for letting us host their events. 
The board had several suggestions on load in and merchandise sales.   
  
. 
 
County Commissioners – No comments from the county commissioners 
 
 

 
 



































































   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: ARPA SLFRF Compliance Report for Period Jan - Mar 2024
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
ARPA SLFRF Compliance Report for the Period of Jan-Mar 2024
 

BACKGROUND:
ARPA SLFRF Compliance Report for the period of Jan-Mar 2024

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File item.

Attachments
ARPA SLFRF Quarterly Report 1.1-3.31.24 



SLFRF Compliance Report - SLT-2489 - P&E Report - Q1 2024 
Report Period : Quarter 1 2024 (January-March)

Recipient Profile

Recipient Information

Recipient UEI FNVKTJD3B7C1

Recipient TIN 816001449

Recipient Legal Entity Name Yellowstone County, Montana

Recipient Type Metro City or County

FAIN

CFDA No./Assistance Listing

Recipient Address PO Box 35003

Recipient Address 2

Recipient Address 3

Recipient City Billings

Recipient State/Territory MT

Recipient Zip5 59107

Recipient Zip+4

Recipient Reporting Tier

Tier 2. Metropolitan cities and counties with a population
below 250,000 residents that are allocated more than $10
million in SLFRF funding, and NEUs that are allocated
more than $10 million in SLFRF funding

Base Year Fiscal Year End Date 6/30/2024

Discrepancies Explanation

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes



Project Overview

Project Name: Equipment for Remote Education/Court

Project Identification Number A3

Project Expenditure Category 1-Public Health

Project Expenditure Subcategory 1.7-Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses (including
Communications, Enforcement, Isolation/Quarantine)

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $15,972.37

Total Cumulative Obligations $15,972.37

Total Cumulative Expenditures $15,972.37

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Project Description

Remote learning wifi and cabling for the Youth Services
Center. Virtual teleconferencing equipment for court
arraignments for Justice Court to connect to Yellowstone
Detention Facility

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes

What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$15,972.37

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Technology infrastructure to adapt government operations

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

6 Imp For services to address lost instructional time in K-12
schools

Secondary Impacted and/or Disproportionately Impacted
populations

1 Imp General Public

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

Remote learning wifi and cabling for youth services center;
teleconferencing equipment for arraignments between Jail
and Justice Court.

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Necessary cabling infrastructure to allow youth in our
juvenile detention centers to receive education safely.
Updated teleconferencing equipment for use in arraignments
between the Jail and Justice Court.

Project Name: Prevention in Congregate Settings

Project Identification Number A4

Project Expenditure Category 1-Public Health

Project Expenditure Subcategory
1.4-Prevention in Congregate Settings (Nursing Homes,
Prisons/Jails, Dense Work Sites, Schools, Child care
facilities, etc.)

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $4,609.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $4,609.00



Total Cumulative Expenditures $4,609.00

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Project Description

Lux electrostatic backpack sprayer for disinfectant, for use at
the Youth services center.
Body temperature scanners for use at the detention facility
for incoming inmates, attorneys, and inmate labor working
in the kitchen, in response to a COVID outbreak at the
detention facility.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes

What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$4,609.00

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Acquisition of equipment for COVID-19 prevention and
treatment

Please identify the dollar amount of the total project
spending that is allocated towards evidence-based
interventions

$4,609.00

Is a program evaluation of the project being conducted? No

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

1 Imp General Public

Is a program evaluation of the project being conducted? No

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

Equipment to prevent infection in YSC and Detention
Facilities

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Equipment to prevent infection in YSC and Detention
Facilities, to allow them to continue running and serving the
community and general public.

Project Name: Huntley Water & Sewer

Project Identification Number A5

Project Expenditure Category 7-Administrative

Project Expenditure Subcategory 7.2-Transfers to Other Units of Government

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $25,000.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $25,000.00

Total Cumulative Expenditures $25,000.00

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Project Description ARPA Competitive grant match for Huntley Water & Sewer
District.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? No

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

4 Imp HHs that experienced increased food or housing
insecurity

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

ARPA Competitive grant match for Huntley Water & Sewer
district.



Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Went to discussion with the board of commissioners.

Project Name: Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Project Identification Number A6

Project Expenditure Category 5-Infrastructure

Project Expenditure Subcategory 5.18-Water and Sewer: Other

Status To Completion Completed 50% or more

Adopted Budget $17,555,519.78

Total Cumulative Obligations $9,680,369.97

Total Cumulative Expenditures $9,680,369.97

Current Period Obligations $926,244.75

Current Period Expenditures $926,244.75

Project Description Upgrades on the campus to allow continued use of the
facility for evacuation locations and other emergency uses

Projected/actual construction start date 8/22/2022

Projected/actual initiation of operations date 10/31/2022

Location Type(for broadband, geospatial location data) Address

Location Details 308 6th Ave North Billings MT 59101

Public Water System (PWS) ID Number MT0000153

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
Permit Number

n/a

Median Household Income of service area $60,032.00

Lowest Quintile Income of the service area $17,634.00

Does the project prioritize local hires? Yes

Does the project have a Community Benefit Agreement,
with a description of any such agreement?

No

Project Name: YWCA Building

Project Identification Number A9

Project Expenditure Category 2-Negative Economic Impacts

Project Expenditure Subcategory 2.34-Assistance to Impacted Nonprofit Organizations
(Impacted or Disproportionately Impacted)

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $200,000.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $200,000.00

Total Cumulative Expenditures $200,000.00

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Funding assistance for YWCA Billings' Domestic violence



Project Description program and Gateway Horizons Shelter.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? No

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

11 Imp Classes of NPs designated as negatively
economically impacted

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

As a result of the COVID pandemic, a surge in violent crime
and increased substance abuse across the county and the
region, there has been a large spike in the number of
domestic violence cases. Those trends and the demand for
services and sheltering for victims are not subsiding. To
augment our capability to assist victims and prevent them
from becoming homeless, YWCA Billings has embarked on
building another shelter to expand our current capacity by
300 percent.

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Yellowstone County provided $200,000 of ARPA funds for
the new Gateway Horizons Shelter. The project cost is $4
million. YWCA has raised $2.6 million to move the project
forward.

Number of Non-Profits served (by program if recipient
establishes multiple separate non-profit assistance programs)

1

Project Name: County Attorney

Project Identification Number A7

Project Expenditure Category 6-Revenue Replacement

Project Expenditure Subcategory 6.1-Provision of Government Services

Status To Completion Completed 50% or more

Adopted Budget $1,000,000.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $946,901.51

Total Cumulative Expenditures $946,901.51

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Project Description

Violent drug crime significantly increased as a result of the
pandemic. Prosecuting this crime within the local criminal
justice system has been further complicated by delays in
case resolution time frames directly created by the COVID
pandemic. To address increased crime, court case backlogs,
and extended pre-trial or pre-revocation hearing status of
defendants in YCAO, Yellowstone County will provide 2
prosecutors and 2 paralegals over the course of three years to
address this problem. Additionally, a software upgrade is
included in this to help with a faster processing for all the
above.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes

What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$207,538.77

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Other (please specify)

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance

The 4 positions will assist in processing and prosecuting the
crimes committed in the Downtown Billings corridor,
directly affecting American Indians and Alaska Natives,



program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

who have been disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic-related surge in crime, as victims (4.9% of
population, 21% of victims) and offenders (39% of charges).

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Felony cases are taking longer to prosecute and work
through the court system putting immense pressure on the
local detention facility, the district court, the prosecutors,
and defense attorneys. There are more defendants awaiting
trial or revocation hearing, and because there are more
uncharged suspects, there are more criminal suspects and
defendants on the streets in Billings. Violent crime increased
almost 40% between 6/20-8/21 compared to the previous 12
months.

Project Name: Lockwood TEDD

Project Identification Number A8

Project Expenditure Category 7-Administrative

Project Expenditure Subcategory 7.2-Transfers to Other Units of Government

Status To Completion Completed 50% or more

Adopted Budget $756,000.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $457,135.33

Total Cumulative Expenditures $457,135.33

Current Period Obligations $70,592.00

Current Period Expenditures $70,592.00

Project Description

Funding the engineering costs for Lockwood Targeted
Economic Development District (TEDD), to assist in the
project to extend sewer and water infrastructure to the area
north of Interstate 90 near the community of Lockwood, to
address the reliance on septic and drain field systems which
have led to high nitrate levels and other groundwater
concerns.

Project Name: Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Project Identification Number A10

Project Expenditure Category 1-Public Health

Project Expenditure Subcategory
1.4-Prevention in Congregate Settings (Nursing Homes,
Prisons/Jails, Dense Work Sites, Schools, Child care
facilities, etc.)

Status To Completion Completed 50% or more

Adopted Budget $3,350,000.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $1,287,991.18

Total Cumulative Expenditures $1,287,991.18

Current Period Obligations $270,325.72

Current Period Expenditures $270,325.72

Project Description Upgrades to air handler units, HVAC, Hepa filtration, and
propane air standby facility

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes



What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$3,350,000.00

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Installation and improvement of ventilation systems

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

1 Imp General Public

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

To address Metra's facilities capability to withstand
long-term emergencies in cases of utility distruptions,
long-term alternative power, and a back-up heating system
fuel for the facility's use as an emergency shelter with heat
and power. To update our central HVAC system to reduce
the spread of communicable disease and assist in the
facility's use as a centralized public health center.

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

The Metrapark Arena was utilized as a centralized public
health center during the COVID pandemic, staging areas for
emergency personnel/equipment, field hospital, shelter for
displaced individuals/animals, and a public vaccination site.
Improvements to the air quality system and back-up
generator will assist in this.

Project Name: Digital Screens / Public Address System

Project Identification Number A2

Project Expenditure Category 1-Public Health

Project Expenditure Subcategory 1.7-Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses (including
Communications, Enforcement, Isolation/Quarantine)

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $2,882,199.38

Total Cumulative Obligations $2,882,199.38

Total Cumulative Expenditures $2,882,199.38

Current Period Obligations $41,250.00

Current Period Expenditures $41,250.00

Project Description

In First Interstate Arena, upgrade LED Video
Display/signage, security system, and public address system
to allow evacuation notices and other public safety
announcements.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes

What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$1,467,042.00

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Other (please specify)

Capital Expenditure Justification
The First Interstate Bank facility is used as a emergency
facility during such public emergencies like COVID-19.
This project will better adapt the facility in its use as such.

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

1 Imp General Public

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

Intended to improve the facility for evacuation notices and
other public safety announcements in case of emergencies



Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Intended to improve the facility for evacuation notices and
other public safety announcements in case of emergencies,
facility is used by all residents of the county.

Project Name: Sanitation Devices

Project Identification Number A1

Project Expenditure Category 1-Public Health

Project Expenditure Subcategory 1.5-Personal Protective Equipment

Status To Completion Completed

Adopted Budget $53,850.00

Total Cumulative Obligations $53,850.00

Total Cumulative Expenditures $53,850.00

Current Period Obligations $0.00

Current Period Expenditures $0.00

Project Description
Kart Kleen entrance units and disinfectant lockers for the
detention facility. Incident response bags and PPE units for
Sheriff's office patrol officers.

Does this project include a capital expenditure? Yes

What is the Total expected capital expenditure, including
pre-development costs, if applicable

$53,850.00

Type of capital expenditures, based on the following
enumerated uses

Other (please specify)

What Impacted and/or Disproportionally Impacted
population does this project primarily serve?

1 Imp General Public

Brief description of structure and objectives of assistance
program(s), including public health or negative economic
impact experienced

Staff were contracting COVID-19, leading to staffing
shortages in the detention facility and for patrol officers.

Brief description of recipient’s approach to ensuring that
response is reasonable and proportional to a public health or
negative economic impact of Covid-19

Use of PPE for detention and patrol officers reduces those
infected and reduces the need for overtime with existing
staff.



Subrecipients

Subrecipient Name: Hardy Construction Co

TIN 810241559

Unique Entity Identifer DJ4JNBQJY646

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 420 North 25th Street

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59101

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: ACE ELECTRIC INC

TIN

Unique Entity Identifer NGJ8DHZDHHY3

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 808 W. Main Street

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Laurel

State MT

Zip 59044

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: Tel Net Systems, Inc

TIN 810532133

Unique Entity Identifer C1J5F6GKZPE3

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 547 S 20th St West, Suite 2

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings



State MT

Zip 59102

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

TIN

Unique Entity Identifer FZ5HN69FGXX8

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 NW 8393, PO BOX 1450

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City MINNEAPOLIS

State MN

Zip 55485

Zip+4 8393

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: YOUNG WOMENS CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF BILLINGS

TIN

Unique Entity Identifer CF1ALKKX1WQ2

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 909 Wyoming AVE

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59101

Zip+4 1638

Entity Type Beneficiary

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

TIN



Unique Entity Identifer PVNTC3F78SY5

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 3300 2ND AVE N STE 3

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59101

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: Hulteng CCM Inc

TIN 010807465

Unique Entity Identifer ZWWGFHB2NEU2

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 6417 Trade Center Ave

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59101

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: Montana Broom & Brush Co

TIN 810286714

Unique Entity Identifer FKEAKL218LK1

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 PO Box 3840

Address Line 2

Address Line 3



City Butte

State MT

Zip 59701

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: Epcon Sign Co

TIN 810360725

Unique Entity Identifer SD1LTKE93L29

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 PO Box 21239

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59104

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: KART KLEEN LLC

TIN 834421771

Unique Entity Identifer XFGPPENSLY83

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 219 MANSION HEIGHTS DRIVE

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City MISSOULA

State MT

Zip 59803

Zip+4



Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

TIN 830250392

Unique Entity Identifer KWAAEL3M2NM4

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 611 SKYLINE ROAD

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City LARAMIE

State WY

Zip 82070

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

TIN 472403909

Unique Entity Identifer XV8HAL8E3YB7

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 PO Box 51475

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City BILLINGS

State MT

Zip 59105

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive 80% or
more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

In the preceding fiscal year, did recipient receive $25 million
or more of its annual gross revenue from federal funds?

No

Subrecipient Name: Cushing Terrell

TIN 810305543

Unique Entity Identifer X78FVBRCRBW8

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 PO Box 30071



Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59107

Zip+4

Entity Type Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes

Subrecipient Name: Yellowstone County

TIN 816001449

Unique Entity Identifer FNVKTJD3B7C1

POC Email Address  

Address Line 1 216 N 26th Street

Address Line 2

Address Line 3

City Billings

State MT

Zip 59101

Zip+4

Entity Type Subrecipient; Beneficiary; Contractor

Is the Recipient Registered in SAM.Gov? Yes



Subawards

Subward No: A6-3

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $54,450.00

Subaward Date 4/1/2023

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59105

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description
Metra RV Area Electrical pedestal replacement, demo
existing pedestals, install new fused disconnects, new 2"
PVC conduit with aluminum conductors.

Subrecipient ACE ELECTRIC INC

Period of Performance Start 4/1/2023

Period of Performance End 3/31/2024

Subward No: A6

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $1,781,882.45

Subaward Date 12/14/2021

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6TH AVE NORTH

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City BILLINGS

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description

The engineer shall provide collaborative coordination,
planning, field work, surveying, specifications, cost
estimates (PS&E) for the infrastructure project. Including,
but not limited to, surfacing, sanitary sewer, potable water,
storm water, and power. Engineer will act as prime
consultant to provide site, surfacing, stormwater,
conveyance design, surveying, lead construction
administration and overall project quality assurance and
quality control.

Subrecipient WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Period of Performance Start 2/1/2022



Period of Performance End 3/31/2024

Subward No: A6-2

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $7,382,147.39

Subaward Date 5/18/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description

The project consists of parking lot reconstruction to include
removal of asphalt, grading, paving, concrete, striping,
signage, storm drain removal and replacement, and lighting
improvements.

Subrecipient ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Period of Performance Start 6/1/2022

Period of Performance End 3/31/2024

Subward No: A9

Subaward Type Grant: Lump Sum Payment(s)

Subaward Obligation $200,000.00

Subaward Date 4/12/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 909 Wyoming Ave

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description
One time support payment to assist YWCA of Billings in
building their 'Gateway Horizons Shelter' for their Domestic
violence program.

Subrecipient YOUNG WOMENS CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF
BILLINGS

Period of Performance Start 6/7/2022

Period of Performance End 6/7/2022

Subward No: A10



Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $1,178,107.92

Subaward Date 4/1/2023

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description

Project is to upgrade the existing HVAC Rooftop Units to
include ultraviolet light Units and HEPA/AQ filter upgrades.
Project will include upgrades to the Metra propane tanks,
new vaporizer/mixers, and supply lines for propane-air
standby in case of emergency gas disruption.

Subrecipient ACE ELECTRIC INC

Period of Performance Start 4/1/2023

Period of Performance End 3/31/2024

Subward No: A2-6

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $133,650.00

Subaward Date 4/1/2023

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description

It is necessary to replace security cameras in the Expo and
Pavilion buildings to avoid operating two different security
systems. The new system is compliant with Homeland
Security regulations and the old system is not. The cameras
in Expo & Pavilion are somewhat piecemeal with supporting
I.T. equipment set up in non-secure and wet areas.

Subrecipient Hardy Construction Co

Period of Performance Start 4/1/2023

Period of Performance End 6/30/2023

Subward No: A2-5

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract



Subaward Obligation $480,197.49

Subaward Date 9/20/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave N

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City BILLINGS

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description Electrical work for the Arena security portion of the digital
screen and PA system.

Subrecipient HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

Period of Performance Start 9/20/2022

Period of Performance End 9/30/2023

Subward No: A2

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subaward Obligation $959,859.26

Subaward Date 2/4/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description L.E.D. video display and signage for more effective
communication in emergencies.

Subrecipient Epcon Sign Co

Period of Performance Start 2/4/2022

Period of Performance End 6/30/2022

Subward No: A2-2

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $390,259.97

Subaward Date 3/22/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6TH AVENUE NORTH

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City BILLINGS



Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description Labor, materials, and equipment necessary for electrical
services for MetraPark digital screens and address system.

Subrecipient ACE ELECTRIC INC

Period of Performance Start 4/26/2022

Period of Performance End 3/31/2024

Subward No: A2-3

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $339,769.46

Subaward Date 3/22/2022

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6th Ave North

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City Billings

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description Labor, materials, and equipment necessary for data cabling
services

Subrecipient Tel Net Systems, Inc

Period of Performance Start 6/1/2022

Period of Performance End 12/31/2023

Subward No: A2-4

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subaward Obligation $223,303.91

Subaward Date 12/16/2021

Place of Performance Address 1 308 6TH AVENUE NORTH

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City BILLINGS

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description Labor, materials, and equipment for the installation of audio
visual equipment

Subrecipient AVI SYSTEMS, INC.



Period of Performance Start 3/7/2022

Period of Performance End 12/31/2023

Subward No: A1

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subaward Obligation $53,850.00

Subaward Date 10/8/2021

Place of Performance Address 1 3165 KING AVE E

Place of Performance Address 2

Place of Performance Address 3

Place of Performance City BILLINGS

Place of Performance State MT

Place of Performance Zip 59101

Place of Performance Zip+4

Description
Purchase of equipment used to counteract the spread of
COVID-19 in the Yellowstone County Detention Facility
and for Sheriff Patrol Officers.

Subrecipient KART KLEEN LLC

Period of Performance Start 10/8/2021

Period of Performance End 10/8/2021



Expenditures

Expenditures for Awards more than $50,000

Expenditure: EN-00743274

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $121,458.09

Expenditure: EN-00743275

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $23,344.29

Expenditure: EN-01065433

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 1/2/2023

Expenditure End 3/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $330,191.25



Expenditure: EN-01657622

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $443,051.05

Expenditure: EN-01657819

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $3,539,019.93

Expenditure: EN-01672528

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0756635

Subaward No A6-3

Subaward Amount $54,450.00

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $37,620.00

Expenditure: EN-01783625

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542



Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 7/1/2023

Expenditure End 9/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $966,472.00

Expenditure: EN-01901260

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $228,439.96

Expenditure: EN-01901261

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $1,427,740.33

Expenditure: EN-01901262

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0756635

Subaward No A6-3

Subaward Amount $54,450.00

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC



Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $55,440.00

Expenditure: EN-02013648

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 1/1/2024

Expenditure End 3/31/2024

Expenditure Amount $353,880.50

Expenditure: EN-02013649

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 1/1/2024

Expenditure End 3/31/2024

Expenditure Amount $560,153.24

Expenditure: EN-02013652

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0756635

Subaward No A6-3

Subaward Amount $54,450.00

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 1/1/2024

Expenditure End 3/31/2024

Expenditure Amount ($38,610.00)

Expenditure: EN-00550208



Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 8/23/2022

Expenditure End 9/20/2022

Expenditure Amount $402,283.30

Expenditure: EN-00550210

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 8/2/2022

Expenditure End 8/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $106,138.62

Expenditure: EN-00200711

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6

Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 2/1/2022

Expenditure End 3/29/2022

Expenditure Amount $56,118.94

Expenditure: EN-00452977

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0147589

Subaward No A6



Subaward Amount $1,781,882.45

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name WESTERN WATER CONSULTANTS, INC

Expenditure Start 4/26/2022

Expenditure End 6/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $142,604.04

Expenditure: EN-00453017

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward ID SUB-0354542

Subaward No A6-2

Subaward Amount $7,382,147.39

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ASKIN CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Expenditure Start 6/1/2022

Expenditure End 6/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $463,134.30

Expenditure: EN-00453069

Project Name YWCA Building

Subaward ID SUB-0354549

Subaward No A9

Subaward Amount $200,000.00

Subaward Type Grant: Lump Sum Payment(s)

Subrecipient Name YOUNG WOMENS CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF
BILLINGS

Expenditure Start 6/7/2022

Expenditure End 6/7/2022

Expenditure Amount $200,000.00

Expenditure: EN-01657824

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward ID SUB-0751505

Subaward No A10

Subaward Amount $1,178,107.92

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023



Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $670,537.00

Expenditure: EN-01783626

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward ID SUB-0751505

Subaward No A10

Subaward Amount $1,178,107.92

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 7/1/2023

Expenditure End 9/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $181,715.89

Expenditure: EN-01901263

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward ID SUB-0751505

Subaward No A10

Subaward Amount $1,178,107.92

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $82,636.99

Expenditure: EN-02013653

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward ID SUB-0751505

Subaward No A10

Subaward Amount $1,178,107.92

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 1/1/2024

Expenditure End 3/31/2024

Expenditure Amount $243,218.04

Expenditure: EN-00743267



Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0126775

Subaward No A2

Subaward Amount $959,859.26

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subrecipient Name Epcon Sign Co

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $70,146.26

Expenditure: EN-00743268

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $65,010.13

Expenditure: EN-00743269

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345901

Subaward No A2-4

Subaward Amount $223,303.91

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $5,141.57

Expenditure: EN-00743273

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0423096

Subaward No A2-5



Subaward Amount $480,197.49

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2022

Expenditure End 12/31/2022

Expenditure Amount $209,836.60

Expenditure: EN-01065483

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345901

Subaward No A2-4

Subaward Amount $223,303.91

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

Expenditure Start 1/1/2023

Expenditure End 3/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $42,589.89

Expenditure: EN-01065480

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 1/2/2023

Expenditure End 3/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $55,900.35

Expenditure: EN-01065481

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 1/1/2023



Expenditure End 3/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $62,954.99

Expenditure: EN-01657610

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $30,982.50

Expenditure: EN-01657613

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $73,772.48

Expenditure: EN-01657616

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345901

Subaward No A2-4

Subaward Amount $223,303.91

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $111,234.44

Expenditure: EN-01657619



Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0423096

Subaward No A2-5

Subaward Amount $480,197.49

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $89,312.94

Expenditure: EN-01657879

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0751524

Subaward No A2-6

Subaward Amount $133,650.00

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Hardy Construction Co

Expenditure Start 4/1/2023

Expenditure End 6/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $133,650.00

Expenditure: EN-01783623

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 7/1/2023

Expenditure End 9/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $45,329.03

Expenditure: EN-01783624

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0423096

Subaward No A2-5

Subaward Amount $480,197.49



Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

Expenditure Start 7/1/2023

Expenditure End 9/30/2023

Expenditure Amount $78,701.88

Expenditure: EN-01901257

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount $866.25

Expenditure: EN-01901259

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 10/1/2023

Expenditure End 12/31/2023

Expenditure Amount ($503.65)

Expenditure: EN-02013647

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 1/1/2024

Expenditure End 3/31/2024



Expenditure Amount $40,837.50

Expenditure: EN-00550202

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 9/6/2022

Expenditure End 9/20/2022

Expenditure Amount $95,272.41

Expenditure: EN-00550203

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 7/26/2022

Expenditure End 8/23/2022

Expenditure Amount $62,041.95

Expenditure: EN-00550204

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0126775

Subaward No A2

Subaward Amount $959,859.26

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subrecipient Name Epcon Sign Co

Expenditure Start 9/20/2022

Expenditure End 9/20/2022

Expenditure Amount $259,314.66

Expenditure: EN-00550205

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System



Subaward ID SUB-0345901

Subaward No A2-4

Subaward Amount $223,303.91

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

Expenditure Start 8/2/2022

Expenditure End 8/2/2022

Expenditure Amount $13,365.49

Expenditure: EN-00551169

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0423096

Subaward No A2-5

Subaward Amount $480,197.49

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name HIGH TECH SOLUTIONS-SYSTEMS GROUP, INC

Expenditure Start 9/20/2022

Expenditure End 9/20/2022

Expenditure Amount $102,346.07

Expenditure: EN-00152457

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0126775

Subaward No A2

Subaward Amount $959,859.26

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subrecipient Name Epcon Sign Co

Expenditure Start 2/4/2022

Expenditure End 2/4/2022

Expenditure Amount $362,355.84

Expenditure: EN-00452978

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0126775

Subaward No A2

Subaward Amount $959,859.26

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order



Subrecipient Name Epcon Sign Co

Expenditure Start 6/1/2022

Expenditure End 6/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $268,042.50

Expenditure: EN-00452981

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345875

Subaward No A2-2

Subaward Amount $390,259.97

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name ACE ELECTRIC INC

Expenditure Start 4/26/2022

Expenditure End 6/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $134,621.29

Expenditure: EN-00452984

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345881

Subaward No A2-3

Subaward Amount $339,769.46

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name Tel Net Systems, Inc

Expenditure Start 6/1/2022

Expenditure End 6/30/2022

Expenditure Amount $62,944.20

Expenditure: EN-00452987

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward ID SUB-0345901

Subaward No A2-4

Subaward Amount $223,303.91

Subaward Type Contract: Definitive Contract

Subrecipient Name AVI SYSTEMS, INC.

Expenditure Start 5/1/2022

Expenditure End 5/17/2022

Expenditure Amount $50,972.52



Expenditure: EN-00152458

Project Name Sanitation Devices

Subaward ID SUB-0147488

Subaward No A1

Subaward Amount $53,850.00

Subaward Type Contract: Purchase Order

Subrecipient Name KART KLEEN LLC

Expenditure Start 10/8/2021

Expenditure End 10/8/2021

Expenditure Amount $53,850.00

Aggregate Expenditures for Awards less than $50,000

Expenditure: EN-00743277

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $10,196.49

Total Period Obligation Amount $10,196.49

Expenditure: EN-01065490

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $13,323.73

Total Period Obligation Amount $13,323.73

Expenditure: EN-01657829

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $75,536.29

Total Period Obligation Amount $75,536.29

Expenditure: EN-01783629

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $47,855.80

Total Period Obligation Amount $47,855.80

Expenditure: EN-01901276

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure



Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $60,628.23

Total Period Obligation Amount $60,628.23

Expenditure: EN-02013657

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $48,335.01

Total Period Obligation Amount $48,335.01

Expenditure: EN-00550212

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Contracts Awarded

Total Period Expenditure Amount $13,750.03

Total Period Obligation Amount $13,750.03

Expenditure: EN-00453220

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $56,565.49

Total Period Obligation Amount $56,565.49

Expenditure: EN-00743278

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $455.13

Total Period Obligation Amount $455.13

Expenditure: EN-01065487

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $2,617.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $2,617.00

Expenditure: EN-01657838

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $9,594.91

Total Period Obligation Amount $9,594.91



Expenditure: EN-01783631

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $2,040.32

Total Period Obligation Amount $2,040.32

Expenditure: EN-01901269

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $1,411.22

Total Period Obligation Amount $1,411.22

Expenditure: EN-02013662

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $22,332.68

Total Period Obligation Amount $22,332.68

Expenditure: EN-00743276

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $40,338.90

Total Period Obligation Amount $40,338.90

Expenditure: EN-01065491

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $29,185.83

Total Period Obligation Amount $29,185.83

Expenditure: EN-01657836

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $32,016.23

Total Period Obligation Amount $32,016.23

Expenditure: EN-01783630

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments



Total Period Expenditure Amount $1,829.34

Total Period Obligation Amount $1,829.34

Expenditure: EN-01901268

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $8.75

Total Period Obligation Amount $8.75

Expenditure: EN-02013659

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $412.50

Total Period Obligation Amount $412.50

Expenditure: EN-00550206

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Contracts Awarded

Total Period Expenditure Amount $32,629.70

Total Period Obligation Amount $32,629.70

Expenditure: EN-00200993

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $39,714.04

Total Period Obligation Amount $39,714.04

Expenditure: EN-00453155

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Subaward Type (Aggregates) Aggregate of Direct Payments

Total Period Expenditure Amount $137,192.65

Total Period Obligation Amount $137,192.65

Payments To Individuals

Expenditure: EN-00145246

Project Name Equipment for Remote Education/Court

Total Period Expenditure Amount $12,101.33

Total Period Obligation Amount $12,101.33

Expenditure: EN-00453159



Project Name Equipment for Remote Education/Court

Total Period Expenditure Amount $3,871.04

Total Period Obligation Amount $3,871.04

Expenditure: EN-00149053

Project Name Prevention in Congregate Settings

Total Period Expenditure Amount $4,609.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $4,609.00

Expenditure: EN-00145254

Project Name Huntley Water & Sewer

Total Period Expenditure Amount $25,000.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $25,000.00

Expenditure: EN-00743279

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $218.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $218.00

Expenditure: EN-01657843

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $25,631.50

Total Period Obligation Amount $25,631.50

Expenditure: EN-01657844

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $23,144.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $23,144.00

Expenditure: EN-01901279

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $23,882.50

Total Period Obligation Amount $23,882.50

Expenditure: EN-02013666

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $2,486.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $2,486.00



Expenditure: EN-00551176

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $44,401.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $44,401.00

Expenditure: EN-00145477

Project Name Metra Sewer, Water, & Power Infrastructure

Total Period Expenditure Amount $15,936.06

Total Period Obligation Amount $15,936.06

Expenditure: EN-00743280

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $32,025.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $32,025.00

Expenditure: EN-01065497

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $128,946.33

Total Period Obligation Amount $128,946.33

Expenditure: EN-01657846

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $75,802.50

Total Period Obligation Amount $75,802.50

Expenditure: EN-01783632

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $41,354.50

Total Period Obligation Amount $41,354.50

Expenditure: EN-01901277

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $56,622.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $56,622.00

Expenditure: EN-02013664

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $70,592.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $70,592.00



Expenditure: EN-00550198

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $15,613.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $15,613.00

Expenditure: EN-00453150

Project Name Lockwood TEDD

Total Period Expenditure Amount $36,180.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $36,180.00

Expenditure: EN-00743281

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $15,580.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $15,580.00

Expenditure: EN-01065494

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $11,304.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $11,304.00

Expenditure: EN-01065495

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $1,518.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $1,518.00

Expenditure: EN-01657848

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $10,575.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $10,575.00

Expenditure: EN-01783633

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $10,200.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $10,200.00

Expenditure: EN-02013669

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $4,775.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $4,775.00



Expenditure: EN-00550207

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $15,080.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $15,080.00

Expenditure: EN-00453160

Project Name Indoor Air Quality upgrades

Total Period Expenditure Amount $2,400.00

Total Period Obligation Amount $2,400.00

Expenditure: EN-00023880

Project Name Digital Screens / Public Address System

Total Period Expenditure Amount $41,831.35

Total Period Obligation Amount $41,831.35



Report

Revenue Replacement

Is your jurisdiction electing to use the standard allowance of
up to $10 million, not to exceed your total award allocation,
for identifying revenue loss?

Yes

Revenue Loss Due to Covid-19 Public Health Emergency $10,000,000.00

Were Fiscal Recovery Funds used to make a deposit into a
pension fund?

No

Please provide an explanation of how revenue replacement
funds were allocated to government services

Metrapark infrastructure improvements includes parking lot
restructuring for ADA access, public safety vehicle access,
and to improve movement of traffic through the Metrapark
parking lot in the event of emergencies, will be funded with
a portion of the $10 million allocation.



Overview

Total Obligations $15,554,028.74

Total Expenditures $15,554,028.74

Total Adopted Budget $25,843,150.53

Total Number of Projects 10

Total Number of Subawards 12

Total Number of Expenditures 102

Have you expended $750,000 or more in federal award
funds during your most recently completed fiscal year?

Yes

Have you submitted a single audit or program specific audit
report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC)?

Yes

Certification

Authorized Representative Name JENNIFER JONES

Authorized Representative Telephone  

Authorized Representative Title Finance Director

Authorized Representative Email jjones@yellowstonecountymt.gov

Submission Date 4/25/2024 3:13 PM



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 04/30/2024  
Title: Response to Audit Findings - April 22, 2023
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:
April 1 - April 15 Payroll Audit

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na

Attachments
Audit Findings 




	Agenda
	AI_13125_Proclamation - National Therapy Animal Day 
	       ATT_National Therapy Animal Day 
	AI_13286_Bid Opening for MetraPark 4-H Building HVAC
	5.1.a.__Resolution of Intent to Dissolve RSID 713M Tanglewood Lake Estates 2nd Filing
	       ATT_RSID 713M Resolution of Intent to Dissolve
	RSID 713M Resolution of Intent to Dissolve.pdf
	temp.pdf
	RSID 713M Resolution of Intent to Dissolve.pdf
	RSID 713M Resolution.pdf
	EXHIBIT A RSID 713M Creation Res No 03-149.pdf
	EXHIBIT B MAP.pdf
	EXHIBIT C Property Listing.pdf



	EXHIBIT B MAP.pdf

	5.1.b.__Resolution of Intent to Change Boundary RSID 715M Tanglewood Lake Estates Subdivision
	       ATT_RSID 715M Resolution to Change Boundary
	temp.pdf
	RSID 715M Res of Intent to Change.pdf
	temp.pdf
	RSID 715M Res of Intent to Change .pdf
	Exhibit A Map of boundary changes 2024.pdf
	EXHIBIT B.pdf



	5.2.a.__Res. 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of a Portion of Rosebud Lane
	       ATT_Resolution 24-79 to Appoint a Board of Viewers
	5.2.b.__Resolution 24-80 to Set a Public Hearing on the Proposed Abandonment of a Portion of 56th Street
	       ATT_Resolution 24-80
	7.1.a.__Board Reappointment
	       ATT_Justin Downs 
	7.1.b.__Board Openings
	       ATT_Board Openings
	7.1.c.__Support Letter - YVAS
	       ATT_Support Letter
	AI_13258_MOU - RiverStone Health and YCAO for Additional Funds for CAC
	       ATT_MOU - RSH and YCAO
	7.3.a.__Election Judge Appointments
	       ATT_Resolution Appointing Election Judges
	       ATT_Election Judge Attachement 1
	7.3.b.__Tabulation Policy
	       ATT_Tabulation Policy
	7.3.c.__Wells Fargo Short-term Lease
	       ATT_Wells Fargo Lease
	7.4.a.__Sheriffs Office - YCDF Facilities  Request to Expend Commerical Dryer Replacement
	       ATT_YCDF  RTE  Commercial Dryer
	7.4.b.__Sheriff's Office Detention Facility Request to Expend Walk-In Cooler Floor Replacement
	       ATT_YCDF-Facilities RTE Cooler Floor
	7.4.c.__MetraPark - Recommendation of Award & Contract - West Concessions Remodel - Hardy Construction
	       ATT_Metra Contract Hardy Const.NW Concessions
	       ATT_Metra Recommendation of Award-West Concessions-Hardy Const
	7.5.a.__Contract for Public Works Crack Fill Project I 2023-2024
	       ATT_Contracts
	AI_13293_Big Sky Games 2024
	       ATT_BigSkyGames24
	7.6.a.__Transcarent Subscription Agreement
	       ATT_Transcarent Agreement
	7.6.b.__PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	       ATT_PAR
	AI_13288_Payroll Audit
	       ATT_Payroll Audit
	AI_13287_Board Minutes
	       ATT_Metra Advisory Board Minutes
	       ATT_County Water and Sewer Board Minutes
	AI_13297_ARPA SLFRF Compliance Report for Period Jan - Mar 2024
	       ATT_ARPA SLFRF Quarterly Report 1.1-3.31.24
	AI_13268_Response to Audit Findings - April 22, 2023
	       ATT_Audit Findings

